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About our Institute
We are the professional body for Chartered Accountants in Australia and members
operating throughout the world. Our principal responsibility is the sustainability of
the profession, which comprises more than 73,000 current and future professionals
and business leaders.
We support the profession through our role as a leading provider of postgraduate
accounting education and lifelong learning for members. As stewards of the
Chartered Accountant designation, we also have co-regulatory responsibility for
upholding our members’ high standards of service and enduring commitment to
ethical conduct and operating in the public interest.
We are an advocate of public policy and business, and leverage the knowledge
and business acumen of our members to influence policy settings and contribute
to thought leadership that promotes financial integrity and economic prosperity.
We are a founding member of both the Global Accounting Alliance (GAA), which
is an international coalition of accounting bodies and an 800,000-strong network
of professionals and leaders worldwide, and Chartered Accountants Worldwide,
which brings together leading Institutes of Chartered Accountants in Australia,
England and Wales, Ireland, New Zealand, Scotland and South Africa to support,
develop and promote over 320,000 Chartered Accountants working in more than
180 countries around the world.
charteredaccountants.com.au

About our Annual Report 2013
Readership
This Annual Report outlines how we operate on behalf of members, including
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2013. It is also relevant for future
members – candidates enrolled in the Chartered Accountants Program and
students considering study and a career in the Chartered Accounting profession.
It would also be of interest to policy-makers, regulators, standard-setters and
other stakeholders within government, business, academia, education and the
not-for-profit sector with whom we have important relationships due to the
diverse nature of the profession.
Reporting framework
Our 2012 –2014 Strategic Plan (p8) provides a relevant framework for reporting on
the strategic objectives, measures and initiatives that are directly material to our
business and performance. This incorporates financial, environmental, social and
governance aspects of how our Institute operates (Basis of Preparation p35).
Reporting within this framework, we aim to incorporate the guiding principles
of the draft international integrated reporting framework being developed by
the International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC):
• Strategic focus and future orientation
• Connectivity of information
• Stakeholder responsiveness
• Materiality and conciseness
• Reliability and completeness
• Consistency and comparability.
Audit and assurance
An effective lever for building confidence in corporate reporting is assurance.
Therefore we engage our auditor, EY, to conduct a limited assurance review of the
non-financial information in this report. The assurance process helps us produce
evidence-based reports outlining our performance year on year and serves as
a valuable tool for improving the rigour of our strategic business planning.
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Connecting
business excellence
Our Institute is a body of trusted
professionals providing high-quality
advisory services and creating value in
our economy. Members are engaged in
all aspects of business, government and
communities. It is estimated that nine
million Australian households have contact
with professional accountants, while 95%
of businesses use a business advisor, who
will typically be a professional accountant.
This diversity and reach matters, because it
gives us a depth of insight into economic and
fiscal challenges confronting households,
businesses, not-for-profit entities and the
public sector. Such connectivity enables
us to reinvest our members’ knowledge
through politically non-aligned policy
advocacy and thought leadership that
sponsors economic and societal prosperity.
With a professional commitment to
supporting the public interest, our focus is
on connecting business excellence across
the Chartered Accounting profession
globally, as well as across a range of
stakeholder groups, particularly in the
government, business, finance, not-forprofit and education sectors.
Having wide-ranging associations and
relationships reflects our multifaceted
business operations. We are an education
institution, a professional body for
lifelong learning and member service,
a co-regulatory body, an advocacy body,
and a think tank on future public policy
and thought leadership.

In 2013 we stepped up our engagement
with members and stakeholders,
particularly in relation to the key strategic
initiatives which are highlighted in this
report. We also have a strong focus in
this report on sharing the feedback we
received about our performance.

Education
Learning
• Accounting bodies
• Accounting software
developers
• Member and external
facilitators, trainers
• Product technology suppliers
• Publishers

• Academics
• Education departments
• Member mentors, trainers and assessors
• Students/graduates
• Teachers/parents
• Universities

Leadership
Advocacy
• Business leaders
• Capital market participants
• Government agencies
• Key industry bodies
and associations
• Media
• Parliamentarians
• Regulators
• Standard-setters

Co-regulatory
• International Federation of
Accountants
• Standard-setters
• Professional Conduct Tribunals
• Key industry bodies and associations
• Regulators
• Financial Reporting Council
• Professional Standards Council

• Business leaders
• Government agencies
• Industry bodies
• Parliamentarians
• Policy-makers
• Professional services firms
• Standard-setters
• Think tanks

Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia
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Member feedback
Each year, our members are asked to
comment on their level of satisfaction and
engagement with their Institute, as well as
giving us a rating on our overall performance.
In 2013 satisfaction remained steady,
while we saw an improvement in overall
performance and member engagement.

2013 highlights

Overall member satisfaction

Financial
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Total revenue

96,097

91,639

91,408

Total expenses

98,405

88,801

86,349

Surplus/(deficit)

(2,308)

2,838

5,059

Total members’ funds

54,981

58,479

53,791

12/13 11/12 10/11
73%
75%
74%

Overall performance (mean score /10)
As anticipated, we recorded a $2.3m deficit
for the year to 30 June 2013, predominantly
due to expenditure relating to the proposed
One New Institute with the New Zealand
Institute of Chartered Accountants (NZICA).
Ongoing investment in the redevelopment
of the Chartered Accountants Program and
the consequent upgrade of ICT infrastructure
also contributed to the significant increase
in costs in 2013. Further investment will
continue into the next financial year, the full
extent of which is dependent on the outcome
of the One New Institute proposal.

12/13 11/12 10/11

6.32
6.48
6.62

Member engagement (mean score /10)

12/13 11/12 10/11

6.73
6.77
6.86
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Our strategic focus
Looking at our business and performance,
2013 was characterised by the execution of
initiatives which formed part of the Board’s
strategic focus on both the ‘business of
today’ and the ‘business of tomorrow’.
This report highlights key strategic work
areas – our Chartered Accountants Program,
our future[inc] thought leadership series
and our business modelling for the future,
including the One New Institute project.
This work, in particular, provides the
linkages between our current Strategic Plan
and the way in which we intend to evolve
to uphold the integrity of our Chartered

A world-class professional body
of members, trusted for financial
leadership and the highest ethical
and educational standards

Accounting designation and ensure we
continue as a valued, ethical profession
for current and future generations.
These key strategic work areas align with
what members currently believe are the
most important drivers of their engagement
with us, namely:
• Supporting the development of
knowledge and skills
• Building the standing of members
• A sense of belonging to a professional
community.

Upholding financial integrity
in society by being a visionary
body of trusted professionals that
stands for excellence, relevance,
rigour and authenticity

Trust, unity, innovation,
accountability, integrity

Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia
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Strategic Plan 2012 – 2014
We uphold financial integrity by:

Attracting high-calibre individuals to the
profession who develop and maintain
rigorous standards of technical and
professional expertise and service

Leading and engaging in policy reform
processes and speaking out on areas
where the profession’s expertise is
highly relevant

Ensuring the organisation is governed,
structured and resourced appropriately
with transparent oversight

Strategies
• Attract and retain the best talent
and develop Chartered Accountants
who are valued, trusted and respected
• Strengthen the Chartered Accountants
Program to maintain the standing of
the Chartered Accounting brand
• Ensure programs and services
are relevant to our members and
stakeholders
• Deliver a differentiated segmentation
strategy to ensure value to members
throughout their life cycle
• Enable lifelong learning and
professional development which
upholds professional and technical
standards, protecting the financial
interests of society

• Lead the agenda for change by
positively influencing governments,
regulators, standard-setters and other
stakeholders, improving business and
the profession
• Engage and collaborate with other
bodies and organisations to deliver
better member value, support the
profession, and promote financial
integrity for society
• Achieve increased influence and
brand recognition internationally as
a leading professional body
• Generate discussion on emerging
issues via thought leadership
initiatives, contributing to new
thinking which will positively impact
business and the profession
• Uphold the importance of discipline,
ethics and conduct of the profession

8
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• Ensure sustainability through
appropriate infrastructure and
a sound financial base
• Prepare for the business of tomorrow
through considered thinking around
emerging trends
• Attract and retain capable, passionate,
inspirational individuals who are
committed to our values
• Become a learning organisation with
highly engaged teams united to build
our culture and achieve our objectives

members

SIXTY ONE THOUSAND
Members

61,000
12,000

Government
3%

Big 4
10%

Membership Distribution by
region

Overseas
12%
Other
13%

NSW

Membership by

segment

candidates

Vic

Practice
28%

Overseas

Commerce
34%
Qld

WA

Membership by age band
SA

60 +

41– 60

40 and under

ACT

50

39% 11%

%

Membership by gender

TAS

36%
23%
12%
12%
9%
5%
2%
1%

NT

<1%

36

%

64

%
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Strategically speaking
From the President and the CEO
As President, I am pleased to

report that our Institute had a successful,
highly engaging year with members,
which has ensured that, together, we
are repositioning to make Chartered
Accounting a stronger and more
sustainable profession into the future.
With consistently strong fundamentals
and effective management in the running
of our Institute, the Board has been able
to focus on the ‘business of tomorrow’ as
well as ‘the business of today’, setting the
pathway through a calculated review of our
organisation and with appropriate research,
consultation, analysis and forward planning.
It’s been an honour to lead our profession
in 2013. Highlights of the year included
the opportunity to meet members across
Australia and in many countries around
the world, develop a good understanding
of the conditions in which we work as
Chartered Accountants, and be able to
discuss how we could and should be
supporting members, the profession
and society in years to come.

Our operating environment
Global economic uncertainty, a subdued
Australian economy, a fractured political
environment and significant economic reform
are all factors that have created a challenging
operating environment in 2013. Against
this backdrop, we’ve been engaged in raising
awareness of important issues requiring
the attention of political leaders and policymakers in the 44th Parliament of Australia,
mounting a case for greater policy
leadership and evidence-based public
policy-making, and guiding members
through the implementation of a raft of
legislation, including financial services,
superannuation and audit and reporting.

To continue our focus on ensuring
appropriate regulatory protections for
our members and the broader public
interest, considerable effort has been
dedicated this year to our work with the
Professional Standards Council (PSC) to
renew our limitation of liability schemes
under Professional Standards Legislation.
We will continue to work closely with
the PSC to put in place new schemes
for the next few years.

Financial alignment
Consistent membership growth, solid
enrolments in the Chartered Accountants
Program and prudent financial
management have enabled us to continue
our reinvestment strategy. As expected, we
recorded a deficit of $2.3m in 2013. This
was due to the considerable investment
in our major strategic projects – namely
the Chartered Accountants Program, the
IT/business platform upgrade and the
One New Institute project with NZICA.

Future-driven strategy
Board strategic planning
The make-up and focus of the Board has
evolved during the past two years. We’ve
benefited from fresh thinking, triggered
by our four new Directors and a series of
strategic sessions involving exceptional
external thinkers.
These sessions gave us a clear perspective
on the forces that are game-changing
for our profession. We explored the push
and pull of global business, the role of
technology and innovation in driving the
economy, changing demographics and
the impact of these trends on the education
sector and society. Following on from
these sessions, we are in the process

of reviewing our business model and
clarifying the commercial principles
that underpin our operations to ensure
our organisation’s sustainable future.
One New Institute
Working with NZICA through our shared
IT/business platform and the new
Chartered Accountants Program, we’ve
realised we could potentially achieve
more for members as one Institute. Both
organisations are proud guardians of our
Chartered designation. As I often say –
our ‘ticket to play’ holds great value.
The need to uphold the pre-eminence
of our Chartered brand has been a key
message from members throughout the
extensive consultation we’ve undertaken
across Australia, New Zealand, Asia and
the UK.
My main message to members in the
consultation document we sent out in
May this year was that the profession
has reached a critical point in its history
in terms of taking decisive action, now,
to consider our sustainability.
I am pleased that we have been able
to offer members a bold vision to make
members the trusted leaders in business
and finance, backed by a new trans-Tasman
body with the scale and financial capacity
to invest significantly in the delivery of
strategy and the provision of more focused
and relevant services for members.
The Board and I believe it is in the best
interests of members to work towards
transforming our traditional Institute model
and focusing our energies on upholding the
pre-eminence of our brand, improving our
relevance to members and increasing the
profession’s connectivity and influence.

Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia
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We aim to achieve this by strategically
focusing on education and business
leadership, and in becoming more membercentric by being more in tune with members’
professional needs, investing in ways to
connect members and enabling deeper
engagement in business and government
circles. These strategic areas build on our
current Strategic Plan but have greater
regard for global trends and other factors
in the changing economy and society
in which Chartered Accountants play a
pivotal role.
As we take the One New Institute proposal
to a formal member vote in October, I would
like to thank my fellow Directors on both
sides of the Tasman, and particularly NZICA
President Liz Hickey FCA, for their support
and commitment to achieving our shared
vision for the future of our profession.
Leadership
In focusing on the ‘business of tomorrow’,
including our future business modelling
for our Institute and the proposed One
New Institute, the Board set an extremely
full agenda in 2012 – 2013. I would like to
acknowledge the efforts of CEO Lee White
FCA and the teams in Australia and New
Zealand in meeting the challenges of this
work, while at the same time implementing
our key strategic projects, in particular the
new Chartered Accountants Program and
our future[inc] thought leadership initiative.
It has been an honour to be 2013 President
and to work with such a dedicated group
of Directors. I would also like to take
this opportunity to welcome our newest
Directors, Kate Dowling FCA, Ben Miels
FCA, Darren Scammell FCA and Mary
Waldron FCA. The Board has a tremendous
depth of experience and I’m pleased that
we have also set the course for defining
guiding principles to strengthen our
governance oversight and transparency.

Tim Gullifer FCA
President
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As CEO, and a Fellow Chartered

Accountant, I am honoured to continue
leading our organisation in working towards
a sustainable future for our membership.
I have had the privilege of attending some of
the Certificate Presentation Ceremonies for
new members this year. It is encouraging
to see the high calibre of members being
welcomed into our ranks as the next
generation of Chartered Accountants. The
future certainly looks incredibly exciting.

Values and culture
On taking over the role of CEO in 2012,
I identified the values and culture of our
organisation as being integral to the
success of our Institute. Internally, staff
have been focusing on the concept of
’together we make a difference’ in living
the organisation’s new value structure.
I am happy to report that we have seen a
significant increase in staff engagement
over the past 12 months. This is especially
pleasing in such a challenging environment,
and puts us in a strong position as members
consider the One New Institute proposal
and work towards our common goal
with NZICA of delivering more value for
our members.

One New Institute
We are on a strong footing with NZICA
through our collaboration which has
evolved over the past few years, and
I believe the process of considering and
voting on the One New Institute proposal
has been an opportunity to further
strengthen our value proposition to the
membership. Resourcing such an initiative
effectively is important to our organisational
sustainability. I have sought to strike a
balance between this project and business
as usual, while understanding that on many
levels the two are linked. This balance
can be a challenge at times, but retaining
and increasing member value has always
remained front of mind.

Business model review
Given the challenging economic and
political environment we are currently
experiencing, we have identified a need to
review the sustainability of our business
model. This involves ensuring our operations
are commercially sound and that we are
using all our resources to their highest
potential to deliver the maximum return
for our membership.

Advocacy and thought
leadership
One of our main focuses is advocacy work,
often undertaken in the ‘background’,
which aims to ensure the best outcomes
for the public, members and the profession
overall. While it is not always possible to
directly influence the decisions of policymakers, there is much that can be done
to create an environment conducive to
good policy development which enables
informed decisions. The outcomes of
the Institute’s advocacy work can be
seen in many workable solutions to the
replacement of the accountants’ exemption
and innovative research on audit quality,
which has been in the public eye since the
Global Financial Crisis. More recently, our
thought leadership series future[inc] has
been focusing on positioning the Australian
economy for future success.

Teamwork
I am privileged to be surrounded by a
dynamic team that’s dedicated to ensuring
our Institute continues to lead the profession.
I’d also like to take the opportunity to thank
all our employees for their contribution to
another successful year. My thanks to
Rachel Grimes FCA for her commitment
to representing members on the Board of
the International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC) and last but certainly not least,
I am truly appreciative of the guidance
and ongoing support from my Board.

Lee White FCA
Chief Executive Officer

Business performance
and member feedback
How we measure our
performance
Our performance measures and
targets are a combination of financial,
membership, research and other data.
The research surveys are conducted by
the independent research house Beaton
Research + Consulting (Beaton).
These surveys measure satisfaction among
members, as well as benchmarking our
Institute’s performance against other
professional member organisations.

Non-research targets are developed
through the business planning and
budgeting process. We have set two
types of research targets: short-term
targets and stretch targets. Short-term
targets are determined in line with
historical performance trends, which
can be upward or downward. These
targets provide an estimate of future
performance if the current level of
investment and effort were maintained.
Where there is no discernible trend in the
historical data, the short-term target is
based on the previous year’s performance.
Stretch targets are an estimate of future
performance if significant investment
and effort were put into the performance
area, and are calculated on a 5% increase
on the previous year’s performance.

Our Institute had a successful, highly engaging
year with members, which has ensured
that, together, we are repositioning to make
Chartered Accounting a stronger and more
sustainable profession into the future.
(Tim Gullifer FCA, President)

Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia
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A STRONG PROFESSION

10/11 11/12 12/13
Measure

Performance

Performance

Performance

SHORT-TERM Stretch
Target
Target Comments

Attract and retain the best talent and develop Chartered Accountants who are valued, trusted and respected.
Brand preference
among students

Net membership
growth

54 57 50
5.2% 4.0% 3.6%
%

%

%

57% 60%
3.4%

Brand research for 2013 shows that the Chartered
Accountant designation is still the preferred
choice. The degree of preference has declined
but is still in line with the eight-year trend.
Membership growth consistent with target and
existing Strategic Plan.

Strengthen the Chartered Accountants Program to maintain the standing of the brand.
Overall candidate
satisfaction

68

73

76

73% 77%

Employer
satisfaction

83

82

81

82% 86%

%
%

%
%

%
%

Candidates express high levels of satisfaction
with the Chartered Accountants Program.

Employer satisfaction with the Program remains
high, with eight out of 10 employers satisfied
with the overall Program. This measure decreased
slightly compared to FY12 result.

Ensure programs and services are relevant to our members and stakeholders.
Satisfaction with
products and services

Products and
services revenue

66

%

73

%

79

%

$16,544,000 $14,884,000 $15,592,000

79% 83%
$16,365,000

Members have expressed an increasingly high
level of satisfaction with our offerings of products
and services.
Continued member support in purchasing products
and services that assist them in their personal and
professional lives and in turn give us additional
revenue to reinvest in member activities.

Deliver a differentiated segmentation strategy to ensure value to members through their career lifecycle.
Value of membership*

5.91 5.84 5.97

5.84 6.14

Member engagement*

6.73 6.77 6.86

6.77 7.11

Perceived value of membership has increased
above target this year as a result of increased
focus on differentiated segment value for
members across the organisation.
Member engagement increased above target this
year as a result of higher focus on differentiated
segment value for members across the
organisation.

Enable lifelong learning and professional development which upholds professional and technical standards.
Satisfaction with
training and
development
Enabling members to
demonstrate to others
a commitment to high
professional and
ethical standards*

82

%

6.75 6.86*
* Mean score /10
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86

%

84

%

7.10

86% 90%
6.86 7.20

Members continue to express high levels
of satisfaction with our support of their
continuing professional education.
The increase reflects ongoing focus across the
profession on upholding high levels of ethical
standards and demonstrating financial integrity.
There is a heightened sense of community
expectation around the role played by our
profession in our community.

LEADERSHIP AND INFLUENCE

10/11 11/12 12/13
Measure

Performance

Performance

Performance

SHORT-TERM Stretch
Target
Target Comments

Lead the agenda for change by positively influencing governments, regulators, standard-setters and other stakeholders,
improving business and the profession.
Satisfaction with
advocacy activities

Representing
members’ interests to
media/government *

81

%

71

%

76

%

71% 74%

6.42 6.45 6.74

6.32 6.78

This measure reflects the changing policy
landscape and the prominence of policy issues
and our advocacy efforts in reforms such as
financial advisory services.
This is indicative of our strategic focus on
providing consistent, non-aligned commentary
on fiscal and business issues that are relevant
to members.

Achieve increased influence and brand recognition internationally as a leading professional body.
Membership
growth in Asia

Australian Chartered
Accountants in GAA
countries

6.0

%

5.0

%

4.9

%

5.0%

Membership growth in Asia continues to be
strong. It exceeds the overall percentage
growth in members for the Institute, reflecting
the overall importance of Asia.
Consistent demographic trends globally.

4,762 4,886 4,823

Engage and collaborate with other bodies and organisations to deliver better member value, support the profession
and promote financial integrity in society.
Opportunities for
members to participate
in policy development
and advocacy *

6.04

6.16 6.46
55

%

Member volunteering
in community

volunteer

6.16 6.46

53

%

We continue to draw on insights and expertise
of members through formal channels and
issue-based mechanisms, i.e. Regional Councils,
Board committees and management advisory
committees, and direct engagement with
members on policy analysis and development.
More than half of members surveyed in 2013 give
back to the community through volunteering
their professional skills in various roles.

volunteer

Generate discussion on emerging issues via thought leadership initiatives, contributing to new thinking which will
positively impact business and the profession.
Providing leadership
in the field *

Satisfaction with
leadership initiatives

6.67 6.74 6.89
81

%

81

%

80

%

6.74 7.07

Recognition of our leadership and influence in
providing advice and advocacy that is politically
non-aligned and in the public interest.

81% 85%

This result reflects the changing policy landscape
and our higher focus on broader macro-economic
thought leadership and commentary.

* Mean score /10
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LEADERSHIP AND INFLUENCE (continued)

10/11 11/12 12/13
Measure

Performance

Performance

Performance

SHORT-TERM Stretch
Target
Target Comments

Uphold the importance of discipline, ethics and conduct of the profession.
Enforcing and
maintaining the
integrity of the brand
Professional Conduct
Tribunal hearings

Institute
Professional Conduct
investigations

72

%

13
250

68

%

20
297

85

%

Performance

Performance

An increase in complaints investigated by
the Institute was due to greater awareness
of, and referral to, Professional Conduct
among stakeholders.

313

Performance

This measure was broadened to encapsulate
our disciplinary processes and our support of
members in upholding high standards of conduct
and service delivery.
Results broadly in line with previous years,
taking into account the timing of progressing
investigations through the Professional Conduct
Tribunal is impacted by the timing of external
investigations and proceedings.

23

10/11 11/12 12/13
Measure

85% 89%

SHORT-TERM Stretch
Target
Target Comments

Ensure sustainability through appropriate infrastructure and a sound financial base.
Surplus/(deficit)

Revenue per member
and candidate

Cost per member
and candidate

Cash and cash
equivalents

Greenhouse gas
emissions
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$2.8m ($2.3m) ($2.5m)

We recorded an anticipated $2.3m deficit for the
year to 30 June 2013 due to ongoing investment
in our major strategic projects.

$1,356 $1,284 $1,306 $1,326

Target not achieved due to lower than budgeted
Chartered Accountants Program enrolments.

$1,281 $1,244 $1,337 $1,361

Efficiency gains in the delivery of products
and services.

$5.1m

$30.4m $38.8m $44.8m $41.9m

3,059 2,980 3,173
tCO2e

tCO2e

tCO2e

3,017
tCO2e

Lower capital expenditure and more prompt
payment of membership subscriptions received
prior to year end, compared to budget.
Increase in emissions mainly due to higher
air travel in relation to key strategic projects.

SUSTAINABILITY (continued)

10/11 11/12 12/13
Measure

Performance

Performance

Performance

SHORT-TERM Stretch
Target
Target Comments

Ensure sustainability through appropriate infrastructure and a sound financial base.

Itemised emissions
Purchased electricity

2,236
2,225
2,265
tCO e
tCO e
tCO e
2

Travel – flights

781
tCO e
2

Paper consumption

2

713
tCO e
2

2

863
tCO e

Increase in flights compared to prior year
attributed to great global representation and
strategic work on the One New Institute project
with NZICA.

2

38tCO e 39tCO e 41tCO e

Slight overall increase, but reduced consumption
of paper on an FTE basis.

4tCO e 3tCO e 4tCO e

Water consumption data relating to head office –
in line with previous results.

2

Water supply and
discharge

Slight increase in emissions from electricity
attributed to increase in out-of-hours operations
around strategic projects.

2

2

2

2

2

Prepare for the business of tomorrow through considered thinking around emerging trends.
Formal Board time on
strategic planning

22

%

Formalising dedicated Board time to strategic
planning enabled greater focus on long-range
risks and opportunities.

47

%

Attract and retain capable, passionate, inspirational individuals who are committed to our values.
Voluntary employee
turnover

Average training
spend per employee

18.7 15.8 15.8
%

$2,421

%

% <20%

$914 $1,255

$850

Voluntary employee turnover 4.2 percentage
points below fiscal year target.

Total training spend and actual headcount are
used to calculate the result. The 2012 – 2013
result reflects additional executive training
during the year.

Become a learning organisation with highly engaged teams united to build our culture and achieve our objectives.
Employee engagement

39

%

42

%

47

%

55%

83% of staff completed the survey and
the resultant five basis point improvement
indicates a positive lift in engagement.
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We uphold financial integrity by
ensuring the organisation is governed,
structured and resourced appropriately
and with transparent oversight.

Sustainability
Our key strategic initiative in relation to
this objective in 2012 – 2013 has been
our business modelling for the future.
Since the Board’s strategic planning
sessions commenced in October 2011,
when we engaged a futurist to help us
focus on the ‘business of tomorrow’,
we’ve been considering the changing
environment in which our Institute and
the profession operate and our current
and future business modelling.
Our insights from the Board sessions on
globalisation, emerging technologies,
demographic change and education
culminated in the Board’s strategic planning
session in October last year, facilitated by
Gerhard Vorster, Deloitte’s Chief Strategy
Officer, who leads that firm’s innovation
program.
The most important outcome of this strategic
planning day was agreement that our existing
business model is not the most suitable as a
future framework for enabling the profession
to grow and prosper. Therefore, with the
aim of clearly establishing financial and
professional value in membership, we’re
reviewing our business model. As part of this
review, we have set up an Innovation Centre
to help us respond to the challenges and
opportunities facing us and facing members.
The review involves clarifying our
commercial objectives and establishing
principles for a business model that will
encourage a more commercial manner
of operation while maintaining equity
and consistency in member benefits.
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Business modelling for
the profession
Our commitment to consistently examining
long-range risks and opportunities has
been exemplified through our work with
NZICA on our shared IT/business platform
and the Chartered Accountants Program.
Since March 2012, the Institute and NZICA
Boards have been jointly examining how to
progress our collaboration for the benefit of
members in each country and the broader
Chartered Accounting profession.

It seems self-evident that one
Institute will be better than two
as long as the bureaucracy doesn’t
take over. (Chartered Accountant)
Work commissioned by the Boards around
options for collaboration was shared, tested
and evolved with the councils of both
Institutes. This work was then reviewed by a
trans-Tasman Council Working Group (CWG).
Following feedback from the CWG, in late
March 2013 the Boards jointly decided there
was a compelling case for creating a new
trans-Tasman body, and made the decision
to move to full member consultation.
The consultation paper about the proposal,
sent to members in May, outlined the joint
Boards’ vision and strategies for transforming
the Institutes into a single body, referred
to as One New Institute, which would be
a more than 90,000-strong organisation.

After 60 years as a CA it is
a great opportunity for our
younger members from both
countries to go forward and
make our Institute stronger
and in front of the rest.
(Chartered Accountant)
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Your profession, your voice –
member consultation
The consultation process has been critical
in every step of both Boards’ consideration
of future options. Members were invited
to attend one of 92 face-to-face roadshow
events around Australia, New Zealand,
the UK and Asia to hear from Directors
of our Institute and NZICA. Directors
and the CEO also participated in various
webinars and direct firm visits. Members
also contributed their feedback through
submissions, online comments, focus
groups and phone polling, as well as through
traditional communications channels such
as websites and email.

When I came to London, I was so
glad that I had my CA qualification.
Here in the UK, they really hold it
in high esteem. A lot of my friends
here are CAs, mostly Kiwis and
South Africans. It’s fabulous to
mix professionally and socially
with people who have a similar
badge but different perspectives.
(Chartered Accountant)

All submissions and other forms of
feedback were collated, reviewed and
independently verified, resulting in a clear
mandate from the membership in both
countries to put the One New Institute
proposal to a formal member vote in
October 2013.

I believe that the proposed
New Institute should only be
created if it enhances the already
strong brand name of the ICAA.
(Chartered Accountant)

Addressing risk
The One New Institute proposal is a phased
project with built-in due diligence and
external checks and balances, including
an assessment by an independent expert
of whether the proposal is in the best
interests of members of both Institutes.
Development of the proposal was overseen
by the Institute and NZICA Boards, through
a joint Chartered Accountants Australia
New Zealand (CAANZ) Board, with input
from councils, and relevant aspects were
reviewed by financial and legal experts
before being put to members.

Delivery of member value is
important to me, and I’ve seen the
commitment to meeting the local
needs of members in both countries.
So I have good reason to be confident
that a local presence and local
representation would continue to be
a strong part of the New Institute.
(Chartered Accountant)

The comprehensive consultation process
from May to July was undertaken in order to
give the Institutes’ combined membership
of more than 90,000 members information
and opportunities to discuss the proposal,
and to help enable every member to make
an informed decision about the future of
their member body.
An Explanatory Memorandum has been
produced for members setting out details
of the proposal, certain information
required by law, and other information
known to the Directors which is material
to members’ decision-making during the
vote period.
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Strategic aspiration

Our ‘business of
tomorrow’ goal is to
be our members’ most
valuable resource.
The Board believes the vision and strategies
contained in the One New Institute proposal
are an appropriate platform for change
for our Institute, whatever structure and
governance is decided upon as the best
pathway to progress our collaboration
with NZICA.
Focusing on becoming more membercentric involves ensuring members have
the tools and resources to excel in their
business, and to network and engage
nationally, regionally and around the world.

We uphold financial integrity by
attracting high-calibre individuals to the
profession who develop and maintain
rigorous standards of technical and
professional expertise and service.

A strong
profession
Our key strategic activity in relation to
this objective during 2012 – 2013 has
been the implementation of the new
Chartered Accountants Program jointly
with NZICA.

Slowly I’m realising the value in this
course, which is, there is no black and
white answer. The unfortunate thing
is, it’s a shame that we are not taught
the same way through university or
even high school. (candidate)
We’ve been educating Chartered
Accountants for more than 80 years.
During this time we have built a reputation
among our stakeholders for offering highquality accounting education.
As well as candidates studying to become
Chartered Accountants, our stakeholders
include firms and employers of candidates,
Chartered Accountants who mentor the
more than 12,000 candidates, Program
presenters and facilitators, firm trainers,
and Program assessors.

February 2013 marked the start of the next
phase of our education platform with the
commencement of the first two modules
in the new Chartered Accountants Program
in both Australia and New Zealand.
The Program now has revised content
that reflects changing policy, markets and
business settings, and a contemporary
delivery platform incorporating a blend of
online and face-to-face learning, making it
more flexible and intuitive for candidates.

The core content was set out perfectly
and made it easy for me to learn. The
use of diagrams, worked examples
and activities throughout meant
I was able to keep focused. (candidate)
We are concurrently developing and
analysing the Program. The implementation
of the first two modules was not without
some issues and challenges, but our focus
has been on seeking feedback and working
on enhancements to optimise the candidates’
learning experience.
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During Term 1 we surveyed candidates
about the quality of their educational
experience and the Program content
and learning supports, as well as about
myLearning, which is the new online
learning space and home to the core
learning materials and resources. We
also surveyed members through our
annual satisfaction survey as part of
our reporting framework.

I believe that a lot of thought needs
to be given to the role of mentors and
the guidelines given to mentors telling
them that they are responsible for
supporting candidates through the
Program. (mentor and masterclass presenter)
Changes were made swiftly. For example,
we’ve changed the Candidate Study
Guide to include printed core content,
readings and some case studies, we’ve
increased the frequency and numbers of
virtual classrooms, and we’re continuing to
enhance the myLearning platform around
navigation, forums, managing optional
learning and online assessments. Through
focus groups we’ve also delved deeper
into the survey findings to confirm further
enhancements for the future.

Firstly, it is important to mention that
the content is brilliant. The standard
is as high as ever and very practical.
In my opinion, the delivery leaves a
lot to be desired ... (candidate)
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Addressing risk
Commencement of the new Chartered
Accountants Program using an online
learning platform gave us a greater
understanding of the risks, opportunities
and developments in online education and
learning. Universities and other teaching
institutions are faced with many of the
same risks and challenges, especially
with the growth of MOOCs (massive
open online courses), which is forcing
a reassessment of traditional business
models and questioning how best to
add value in teaching and learning. As
technology evolves, we need to continue
investigating what the next wave of change
could, and should, be for accounting
education. How will future generations
of Chartered Accountants want to learn
and develop their careers?

Strategic aspiration

Our ‘business of
tomorrow’ goal is to
be the leaders in
business education.
Through our ongoing strategy of
engagement with members, which is
giving us a better understanding of the
technical and professional support that
members need, along with the consultation
and research conducted in relation to
the One New Institute proposal, we’ve
identified the need and opportunity to
broaden our education and lifelong
learning platform.

There have been some technical
difficulties with the new Program,
but the Institute has shown me
how valuable feedback is and from
my experience, they have done
everything possible to accommodate
candidate concerns. (Big 4 candidate)

This will involve continuing to enhance
the Chartered Accountants Program
with NZICA and other education partners
in Asia, and broadening our training
and development offerings into a
comprehensive, lifelong learning program,
delivered face to face and online, providing
a full spectrum of high-value education
opportunities via strategic partnerships.

The Board’s strategy session in 2012 with
former federal minister Lindsay Tanner
reinforced our Institute’s deep involvement
in education, as leaders in credentialing, as
a standard setter/tester, as a facilitator and
as an education partner. As the education
transformation continues, we believe we
have a duty to develop research around
the future of accounting education, so our
newly established Innovation Centre is
investigating evolving education models
and learning choices.

Expanding our business education platform
is important to retaining our relevance and
improving our flexibility and adaptability
as we continue to operate within changing
education models and global business
markets.

We uphold financial integrity by
leading and engaging in policy
reform processes and by speaking
out on areas where the profession’s
expertise is highly relevant.

Leadership
and influence
Our key strategic activity in relation
to this objective during 2012 – 2013
has been the implementation of our
future[inc] thought leadership platform.
Feedback from members shows that
policy advocacy and thought leadership are
important areas of work for our Institute.
This is because Chartered Accounting is
founded on serving the public interest. And
with members touching many aspects of
business and society, we are well positioned
to leverage their knowledge and insights.

The accounting profession is deeply
connected into the business trends
that will cause businesses to survive
or fail over the next five to 10 years.
(facilitator)

We do this, on one level, by contributing
politically non-aligned policy and technical
advice through our engagement with policymakers, standard-setters, regulators and
business leaders and through submissions,
publications and media commentary.
On a higher level, we work alongside
other national policy think-tanks, such as
the Lowy Institute for International Policy
(the Lowy Institute) and the Committee
for Economic Development of Australia
(CEDA). During the course of the year we
joined these bodies as a corporate member
and undertook high-level engagement,
including sponsorship of the annual CEDA
dinner, which featured Reserve Bank of
Australia Governor Glenn Stevens.
We also launched our own thought
leadership platform, future[inc], which
seeks to be thought-provoking and
stimulate discussion on issues that shape
and challenge business and the economy,
and that will take advantage of opportunities
as they arise over the next few decades.
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I believe that the Institute’s (and
therefore the members it represents)
reputation can only be enhanced
with leaders of influence in the
wider community by producing such
thoughtful, apolitical commentary of
what is truly in the national interest.
(member)
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The genesis for future[inc] was the Board’s
‘business of tomorrow’ strategy session
on changing demographics facilitated by
KPMG Partner Bernard Salt.
This session was then cultivated through
a round-table discussion with the Lowy
Institute’s members, policy-makers,
business sector experts and leaders in
the profession.

I’m reading the future[inc]
document at the moment and
I think it’s fabulous. I hope you
get lots of traction from the paper.
It certainly deserves it. (member)
Our first paper in the future[inc] series,
Developing a plan for Australia’s economic
prosperity, identifies a framework for more
cohesive policy development and provides
an initial assessment of Australia’s economic
position through a SWOT analysis.

As a member with an interest in
furthering discussion and debate
around resolving the funding of
our much needed infrastructure,
it was pleasing to read the thought
leadership paper and the Institute’s
considered analysis of issues
needing address by both private
and public sectors. (member)
In the year of a federal election, the
second instalment of future[inc] is An
economic policy platform for the next
term of government, bringing together
our key perspectives on what the federal
government of Australia should be focusing
on in the next term of parliament in order to
advance the nation’s economic prosperity.

Addressing risk
Our future[inc] work could be considered
as a risk management tool for helping the
nation adapt to the challenges of future
decades. In initiating this work, we are also
advancing the profession’s understanding
of its role in supporting business and the
economy.

What future[inc] does is paint the
big picture. The Institute would have
to fit into that broad framework and
adapt and change. (facilitator)
The paper, Developing a plan for Australia’s
economic prosperity, also informed our
own work by looking at the risks and
opportunities for the profession and our
ongoing business modelling.

Strategic aspiration

Our ‘business of tomorrow’ goal is to
be respected for business leadership.
Our goal is to be recognised as the
leading trans-Tasman voice for business
and a leading voice in the debate for the
profession internationally. This will be
achieved through targeted investment
in thought leadership, advocacy and
brand differentiation.

Our future[inc] initiative formed the basis
for discussion at an exclusive event at the
Art Gallery of NSW, bringing together
some of Australia’s pre-eminent business
minds, policy-makers and regulators
with the aim of stimulating a new wave
of nation-building economic reform.
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Our brand values are the
guideposts for how we believe
we should work together.

Our people
United by our values

People leaders’ conference

Our organisational values were strongly
reinforced during 2012 – 2013 as we worked
through a period of significant review
and change. Our brand values are the
guideposts for how we believe we should
work together, having been developed
from within the team in late 2011.

Energising our people leaders was the
objective of our first people leaders’
conference, in February. The conference
was an opportunity to think about and
discuss how we lead the organisation in
changing times.

This year we formed a BV Crew (brand/
values) across the business to bring these
values to life each day. The BV Crew
coordinated activities and team events
to increase awareness of the values, and
we also introduced an employee award,
the Making a Difference Award. The
award is designed to motivate employees
to embrace and promote the values
and is awarded to the employee who is
regarded as a role model for others. Our
congratulations to Maryann Fisher from
the Chartered Accountants Program,
who was the first to receive the award.

I would like to thank you for such an
inspiring and motivating past couple
of days! I feel very honoured to have
been part of the conference and to
be a valued member and leader of
the Institute. (people leader)
The conference brought all our people
leaders together to explore and experience
what it is like to go through change at work.
We did a practical case simulation and
heard insights from some highly regarded
Australian business leaders, Ann Sherry,
CEO of Carnival Cruises, and George
Beaton, Executive Chairman of Beaton.

The biggest lesson for me was about
reflecting on the steps required for
ensuring change has a chance to
succeed. You can get all of the steps
right, however if you get them out of
order or rush ahead without planning,
the desired impact can be lost or have
the opposite effect. (general manager)
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We work together with a single focus. We support each other for success.

We learn through experience and create progressive solutions.

We accept and take personal ownership of our decisions and actions in every aspect of our roles.

We believe in ourselves and each other to do the right thing.

We make decisions and act for the greater good.

Our values
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I thoroughly enjoyed our people leaders’
conference – it was relevant for every leader.
It was great to be able to socialise with
upper management as well as middle
management, it felt like it was breaking down
the hierarchies which was great. (people leader)
Our culture

Our ‘brand values’ goal is to
foster a culture that supports
high-performing, passionate,
inspirational employees, working
together to achieve our objectives.
Making sure we have a healthy and
effective culture is paramount to ensuring
our people are engaged in their work and
can achieve success. Engagement is a
measure of the passion, commitment
and advocacy that people have for the
organisation. In June, the staff engagement
survey was run, with 83% of our people
getting involved. Overall, engagement
increased by five basis points, to 47%,
on the previous year. This movement
represents a 12% lift, which is a significant
move in the right direction. Teams across
the business are now using the survey
results to target initiatives to further
improve engagement levels and work
towards creating an even stronger culture
of high performance.
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Employees

FOUR HUNDRED AND EIGHT
Administrators

138

Employees by age and role

64

Employees by gender and role

38

15

13

112

8

26

Specialists

175

43

75

38

15 4

127

48

55

23

Managers

78

9

26

2

6

24

17

2

Senior Managers

17

20–30 31–40 41–50

7

51–60

2

60 +

8

9
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Kate Dowling FCA

Peter Green FCA

Michael Forde FCA

Mike Blake FCA

President
Tim Gullifer FCA
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Benjamin Miels FCA

Brett Kaufmann FCA

Mary Waldron FCA

Darren Scammell FCA

Deputy President
Andrea Waters FCA

Mel Ashton FCA
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Our
Board

Tim Gullifer FCA

Mel Ashton FCA

Mike Blake FCA

President
Tim Gullifer BEcon DipFP FCA
Senior Partner, Deloitte Private
Tim Gullifer became a member of our
Institute in 1982, advanced to Fellowship
in 1993 and was appointed a Director
in January 2010. He is a member of the
Executive Remuneration and Nominations
committees and the Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand (CAANZ) Board.
Tim has 36 years’ experience advising
a broad range of clients in taxation and
business advisory services in a variety of
industries, notably entrepreneurial growth
companies and large wealthy families.

Deputy President
Mel Ashton BCom FCA
Professional Non-Executive Director,
Mentoring Services for Business
Mel Ashton became a member of
our Institute in 1984 and advanced to
Fellowship in 1994. He was a member
of WA Regional Council from 2001 and
served as Vice Chairman in 2005 and Chair
in 2006. He became a Director in January
2009. He is a member of the Governance,
Executive Remuneration and Nominations
committees. For the first 25 years of
his professional career he specialised in
corporate recovery and insolvency, and
for the past nine years he has been a
professional non-executive director. Mel
currently serves on the boards of a number
of public and large private companies.
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Kate Dowling FCA

Michael Forde FCA

Mike Blake BCom FCA
Auditor-General, Tasmanian Audit Office
Mike Blake became a member of our
Institute in 1991, advanced to Fellowship
in 1997 and was appointed a Director in
January 2011. He is Chair of the Audit
& Risk Committee, a member of the
Executive Remuneration Committee
and the Board observer on the Regional
Australia Advisory Committee. Mike has
over 36 years’ experience in the audit
and accounting professions in both the
public and private sectors and four years’
management experience in the health sector.
Kate Dowling BCom FCA
Executive Manager, Colonial First State
Global Asset Management
Kate Dowling became a member of
our Institute in 2000, was appointed a
Director in October 2012 and advanced
to Fellowship in 2013. She is the Board
observer on the Corporate Advisory
Committee and has more than 15 years’
experience in the financial services industry
in a chartered professional services firm
and in corporate environments.
Michael Forde BA FCA
Head of Capital Markets, CIMB Capital
Markets (Australia) Limited
Michael Forde became a member of
our Institute in 2011, was appointed a
Director in January 2012 and advanced
to Fellowship in 2013. He is a member of
the CAANZ Board. Michael has more than
20 years’ experience in investment banking,
professional services (audit and financial
risk consulting) and treasury in the UK,
Australia and New Zealand.

Peter Green FCA

Brett Kaufmann FCA

Benjamin Miels FCA

Darren Scammell FCA Mary Waldron FCA

Professor Peter Green PhD FCA
University of Queensland Business School

Darren Scammell BEcon FCA
Partner, Financial Services Audit, KPMG

Peter Green became a member of our
Institute in 1997, advanced to Fellowship
in 2009 and was appointed a Director in
January 2009. He is the Board observer
on the CAANZ Education Board and the
Higher Education Advisory Committee. He
is a member of the Chartered Accountants
Program Review Sub-Committee. Peter
has over 25 years’ experience in the tertiary
education industry.

Darren Scammell became a member
of our Institute in 1989, advanced to
Fellowship in 2012 and was appointed a
Director in October 2012. He is a member
of the Audit & Risk Committee. Darren
has more than 27 years’ experience as
an auditor and accountant, specialising
in the financial services industry.

Brett Kaufmann BA (Acc) FCA
Accounting and Governance Consultant

Mary Waldron BEcon & SStudies
(hons) FCA
Managing Partner, Reputation,
Regulation and Risk, PwC

Brett Kaufmann became a member of our
Institute in 1995, advanced to Fellowship
in 2003 and was appointed a Director
in January 2011. He is a member of the
Audit & Risk Committee and is the Board
observer on the Audit Advisory Committee.
Brett brings to the Board more than
30 years’ experience in the public sector,
including external audit, accounting policy
and consolidated financial reporting.

Mary Waldron became a member of our
Institute in 1997, advanced to Fellowship
in 2009 and was appointed a Director
in February 2013. She has more than
20 years’ experience in providing audit
assurance and advisory services to some
of Australia’s largest listed national and
multinational public companies and has
worked closely with senior executives
and directors in the Australian market.

Benjamin Miels BBus (Acc) BLaws
GradDip FCA
Managing Partner, Edwards Marshall
Pty Ltd

Andrea Waters BCom FCA
Professional Non-Executive Director,
AJW Advisory Services

Ben Miels became a member of our
Institute in 1994, advanced to Fellowship
in 2006 and was appointed a Director
in January 2013. He is a member of the
Governance Committee and is the Board
observer on the Public Practice Advisory
Committee. Ben has more than 20 years’
experience in the mid-tier public practice
sector of the profession.

Andrea Waters FCA

Craig Farrow BEc DipFP FCA
(retired 31 December 2012)

Managing Partner, Brentnalls SA
Craig Farrow became a member of our
Institute in 1994, advanced to Fellowship
in 2003, was appointed a Director in 2008
and served as President in 2012. He is Chair
of the Joint Accounting Bodies Committee
and Chair of the CAANZ Board. Craig was
a member of the Executive Remuneration
Committee and Nominations Committee
and served as Chair of the National Public
Practice Committee for four years to the
end of 2007.
Neil Wilson FCA
(retired 31 December 2012)

Partner, PwC Sydney
Neil Wilson became a member of our
Institute in 1984, advanced to Fellowship
in 2007 and was appointed a Director in
January 2010. He was Chair of the Audit
& Risk Committee and a member of the
Executive Remuneration Committee.

Andrea Waters became a member of our
Institute in 1987, advanced to Fellowship
in 2008 and was appointed a Director
in January 2009. She is Chair of the
Governance Committee, a member of
the Executive Remuneration Committee
and Chair of the Chartered Accountants
Program Sub-Committee. For 16 years,
Andrea was an audit partner with KPMG
specialising in financial services, and is
now a professional non-executive director.

Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia

33

Board and committee
meetings
Director attendance for 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2013
Board

CAANZ Board
Held

Attended

Tim Gullifer

9

9

Mel Ashton

9

Andrea Waters

Nominations Committee
Held

Attended

Craig Farrow

12

12

9

Tim Gullifer

12

12

9

9

Michael Forde

12

12

Mike Blake

9

9

Mel Ashton (observer)

5

5

Michael Forde

9

9

Peter Green

9

9

Darren Scammell

6

6

Brett Kaufmann

9

9

Held

Attended

Ben Miels

6

5

Mike Blake

7

7

Neil Wilson

5

5

Brett Kaufmann

7

7

Kate Dowling

6

6

Darren Scammell

4

3

Mary Waldron

3

3

Neil Wilson

3

3

Craig Farrow

5

4

Audit & Risk Committee

Held

Attended

Craig Farrow

2

2

Mel Ashton (First meeting
for 2013 held in July)

0

0

Tim Gullifer

2

2

Rachel Grimes

2

2

Held

Attended

Andrea Waters

3

3

Mel Ashton

3

3

Ben Miels

1

0

Tim Gullifer

2

2

Governance Committee

Executive Remuneration Committee
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Held

Attended

Tim Gullifer

5

5

Mel Ashton

3

3

Mike Blake

3

3

Andrea Waters

5

4

Craig Farrow

2

2

Neil Wilson

2

2

Corporate governance
Our Institute advocates good corporate
governance through its representation on
the ASX Corporate Governance Council and
by maintaining high standards in regulating
its own affairs.
We are a member-based organisation
constituted by Royal Charter in 1928.
The Institute is not a private company, a
public company with associated reporting
requirements, or a not-for-profit entity.
However, we comply with Australian
accounting standards as a not-for-profit
entity. As an Australian body operating
in a co-regulatory environment, we
have chosen to comply with relevant
ASX Corporate Governance Principles,
elements of the Corporations Act (2001)
and other relevant Commonwealth and
State legislation. Corporate governance and
administration is managed through systems
of control and accountability outlined in
our Institute’s Supplemental Royal Charter,
By-laws and Board Governance Manual,
including the Code of Conduct. Further
details about our governance arrangements
can be found on our website at

Basis of preparation

ASX compliance

This Annual Report 2013 has been
prepared by management and the
Board to provide members, candidates
and other stakeholders with non-financial
information and commentary in addition
to the Financial Report.

Seven of the eight ASX corporate
governance principles have relevance to
our Institute’s governance and operations.
The Board has determined that ‘Principle
5: Make timely and balanced disclosure’
has limited relevance because we have
no shareholders with investments at risk.
However, our members are informed of
financial and other matters relevant to the
membership as needs arise.

Management and the Board have
determined the subject matter and criteria
for reporting, including discussion by
reference to:
• The 2012 – 2014 Strategic Plan, which
has been approved by the Board
• This corporate governance statement,
which has been prepared in conformity
with those ASX Corporate Governance
Principles considered appropriate to
the Institute
• A range of measures, reported to the
Board, determined to be indicative of
progress in the three strategic focus
areas. Where member and employee
surveys are quoted, management has
ensured a robust process to collate the
relevant data and report the information
transparently
• Environmental measures based upon
an external consultant report received
by the Institute.

While already compliant with ‘Principle 3:
Promote ethical and responsible decisionmaking’, we’ve taken steps to promote
this principle throughout our membership.
In relation to recommendation 3.2, a
diversity and EEO policy was developed
and approved by the Board, and it was
agreed that our Institute would aim to
achieve 30% female representation on
the Board by December 2013. Currently,
the Nominations Committee considers
diversity as one of its selection criteria
when recommending candidates for
appointment to the Board. As outlined in
our ASX compliance checklist, we comply
in full with the remaining six principles. (The
checklist can be found on our website at
).

The non-financial information in the Annual
Report was prepared based on the most
current data available as at 30 June 2013.
Targets are quoted, where applicable,
based on Board-approved methodology
in line with the 2012 – 2014 Strategic
Plan and the 2013 – 2014 Organisational
Business Plan.
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Board Governance
Guiding Principles
In February 2013 the Board reviewed the
architecture of our Institute’s governance
to ensure that the governance policies,
practices and operating framework are
aligned to our key guiding principles.
The Board agreed on key principles for
the Institute, members and Institute staff
as follows:
Institute
1. We lead the profession
2. We operate a sustainable business
3. We uphold our standards for the
benefit of the profession and society.
Members
1. We lead, support and respect our
members
2. We uphold and promote the
Chartered Accountant designation
3. We provide and promote high-quality
lifelong learning.
Staff
1. We live by our values
2. We strive for excellence in service
delivery
3. We treat each other with respect.
A governance framework is being
developed by management and staff,
incorporating core elements for each of
our guiding principles. This will provide the
Board with the assurance that management
has appropriate processes in place, will
enable clarity of delegated authority and
responsibility for enacting key strategies
and policies, and will identify areas where
improvements can be made.
To be completed in 2013 – 2014, the
Board Governance Guiding Principles will
underpin our commitment to embedding
sustainability throughout our Institute in the
areas of governance, ethics, and member
and employee practices, with the aim of
ensuring we uphold high ethical standards.
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Board of Directors

Board composition

The Board comprises entirely nonexecutive Directors. The five Board
committees are chaired by Directors or
past Presidents. The Board and committees
operate in accordance with charters, which
are reviewed annually to ensure alignment
with best governance practice and the
Strategic Plan.

The Board structure includes both
member-elected and Board-elected
Directors. Directors are selected on the
basis of their skills, experience and other
relevant capabilities and attributes, with
due regard to diversity and the mix of skills
recommended by the Board and to proper
succession planning (for Board member
profiles see p32– 33). The Board comprises
seven Directors elected by members on
regional registers. Up to four additional
Directors can be Board-appointed.
Directors serve a maximum of two terms
of three years each. Each year the Board
elects the President and Deputy President.

The Board has at least seven scheduled
meetings each year, and has the facility
to meet without the CEO as required.
The Board is committed to holding at
least two of these meetings interstate,
and one in New Zealand, with the balance
held at head office in Sydney. A register
of disclosures for each Director is tabled
at every Board meeting (see page 34 for
Board meeting attendance).
The CEO and Management Team
(charteredaccountants.com.au/
management) supply the Board with
information to enable it to make informed
decisions. The Board and management
maintain a three-year Strategic Plan,
which is reviewed and updated annually.
A detailed Organisational Business Plan is
established to set priorities, direction and
performance targets for the organisation
each year.

The Board assesses annually the
independence of each Director. As soon
as they become aware of any actual or
perceived conflict, Directors must disclose
to the Institute any matter that may
affect their independence. All Directors
are requested to disclose related party
transactions on an annual basis, and a
summary of these is disclosed in this
Annual Report (see Note 20, Related Party
Transactions, of the Financial Report).
The Chair of the Board is an independent
Director, usually the President. All Directors
must comply with the Board Code of
Conduct and accompanying guidelines (see
).
The Code covers issues such as the
requirement to act in good faith, duties of
due care and diligence, conflicts of interest,
issues of improper use of power and
information, independence, confidentiality
and the obligation to uphold the law.
The Governance Committee undertakes
an annual performance review of the
Board and Board advisory committees.

Role of CEO
The CEO is appointed by the Board and
is responsible for the management of our
Institute in accordance with approved
strategy, policies, and a performance
contract and delegated authority
framework. The CEO’s responsibilities
include advising the Board on strategic
direction, ensuring business activities
align with the Strategic Plan, conducting
the Institute’s affairs within the law, and
keeping the Board informed of all major
business proposals and developments
through regular reports. The CEO attends
Board and Board committee meetings but
is not a Director and is not entitled to vote.

Board induction, education
and access to information
Each year the President and Deputy
President hold an orientation day for new
Directors, providing them with required
information such as the Board Governance
Manual (including the Code of Conduct)
and the Strategic Plan.
The Governance Committee considers
areas where Directors could benefit
from further professional development.
All Directors have access to the Board
Secretary, who is appointed by the Board.
As Head of Governance, the Board Secretary
is accountable to the Board through the
President on governance matters.

Adding value through Board
structure
The Board and its committees provide
leadership and ensure we set and achieve
our strategic objectives and operate
effectively and efficiently. Under our
By-laws, the Board is given power over:
• Maintaining and controlling the
Institute’s affairs
• The appointment, removal and
remuneration of the CEO
• The promotion of improvements in laws
affecting the accounting profession
• The promulgation of regulations,
including regulations that prescribe
rulings
• Providing guidance on standards of
practice and professional conduct,
including technical standards.
The Board governs the Institute by:
• Setting strategic direction
• Approving and monitoring delivery
of the Strategic Plan
• Liaising with stakeholders
• Monitoring legal and regulatory
compliance with statutory obligations
• Monitoring risk
• Monitoring organisational performance
• Monitoring the financial performance
and position.

Board committees
There are five committees of the Board: the
Audit & Risk Committee, the Governance
Committee, the Nominations Committee,
the Executive Remuneration Committee
and the CAANZ Board. Membership of
these committees comprises Directors, the
immediate past President and the CAANZ
Executive Chair (see page 34 for meeting
attendance).
Governance Committee
The Governance Committee assists
the Board with the oversight of matters
relating to the Royal Charter and By-laws
and general corporate governance. The
review of existing policy initiatives and
the development of new policy initiatives
and related issues, plus ethical guidelines
and professional conduct for the Board
and Board committees, are also the
responsibility of this Committee.
Nominations Committee
The Nominations Committee assists the
Board in identifying potential candidates for
appointment and making recommendations
on the removal of committee members.
While the Committee does not formally
make appointments to the Board, it
identifies gaps in relation to diversity
and skills, and works with the Board to
address these.
Audit & Risk Committee
The Audit & Risk Committee assists the
Board regarding financial reports, the
application of accounting policies, internal
control systems, compliance and the
operation of enterprise risk management
processes. The Committee interacts with
both internal and external auditors and
approves respective plans. All members of
the Committee have financial qualifications.
Executive Remuneration Committee
The Executive Remuneration Committee
comprises the President, the Deputy
President and the chairs of the Audit
& Risk and Governance committees.
The Committee assists the Board on
matters relating to remuneration policy
and strategies for the CEO, Executive
Management Team (EMT) and employees.

Board advisory committees
and councils
There are seven regional councils that
assist the Board in raising and maintaining
the public profile of our Institute among
stakeholders in the regions. There are
six advisory committees: Corporate,
Public Practice, Audit, Regional Australia,
Education Board, and Higher Education.
There are five overseas member groups.
These committees report to the Board
and meet regularly.
From time to time, when circumstances
require, the Board establishes subcommittees to address particular
situations or risks. During 2012 – 2013
two such sub-committees operated;
the ICT Sub-committee concluded on
31 December 2012 and the Chartered
Accountants Program Sub-committee
concluded on 30 June 2013.
All committees are governed by charters,
which are reviewed regularly to ensure
roles and responsibilities are consistent
with current thinking on governance and
the Strategic Plan.
Joint boards and committees
Chartered Accountants Australia
New Zealand (CAANZ) Board
Our Institute and NZICA established
the joint CAANZ Board in 2010 to
oversee collaboration initiatives and the
development of an integrated governance
model. The CAANZ Board is constituted
by a Memorandum of Understanding
and comprises three Australian members
(nominated by the ICAA Board) and three
New Zealand members (nominated by
the NZICA Board). The Executive Chair
is elected by the CAANZ Board annually.
Meetings increased from six to 12 during
2013. The CAANZ Board has delegated
authority from NZICA and the ICAA, but
overriding authority on projects remains
with the respective Boards.
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Joint Accounting Bodies
The objective of the Joint Accounting
Bodies (JAB) is to enable our Institute,
CPA Australia and the Institute of Public
Accountants to liaise and make joint
representations on areas of common
interest to the accounting profession.

Internal auditor

Membership of the JAB comprises the
President and/or Deputy President and
up to two other appointed representatives
from each of the three professional
accounting bodies, one of whom must
be the Chief Executive Officer or their
alternate. Meetings are held from two
to four times a year.

Non-audit services

CAANZ Education Board
Our Institute and NZICA established a joint
CAANZ Education Board in 2011 to oversee
the joint Chartered Accountants Program.

Indemnification and insurance
for Directors and officers
Our By-laws provide for an indemnity to
each person who is, or has been, a Board
Director, regional councillor, committee
member or officer against any liability
that results from any act or deed done
in the discharge of the person’s duties.
Our insurance policy serves to indemnify
Directors, regional councillors, committee
members and officers against liabilities for
costs and expenses incurred by them in
defending legal proceedings arising out
of the performance of their normal duties
for the Institute.

External auditor
EY is our external auditor. The external
auditor’s performance is reviewed annually.
An analysis of fees paid to the external
auditor, including a breakdown of any nonaudit fees, is provided in Note 16, Auditor’s
Remuneration, of the Financial Report. It is
the policy of the external auditor to provide
an annual declaration of independence to
the Audit & Risk Committee (see page 39).
The Audit & Risk Committee undertakes a
full review of the audit engagement before
deciding to reappoint the existing audit
firm or to seek tenders on the open market.
Our Institute is not subject to mandatory
rotation of audit partners but applies
this practice.
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Grant Thornton has been engaged as
our internal auditor since July 2008.
The internal auditor provides a report
on a quarterly basis to the Audit & Risk
Committee.

The non-audit services provided by the
auditor, EY, are set out in Note 16, Auditor’s
Remuneration, of the Financial Report.
The Audit & Risk Committee is satisfied
that the provision of non-audit services is
compatible with the general standard of
independence for auditors imposed by the
Corporations Act. The nature and scope
of each type of non-audit service provided
means that auditor independence was
not compromised.

Risk management
We are committed to building a strong
risk awareness culture and have a
framework for managing risk, ensuring
continuity of business through critical
situations and disaster recovery. Our
risk management framework aligns with
the international standard ISO 31000:2009
Risk Management and operates via five
main elements:
• Organisational commitment
• Planning
• Programs
• Communication and consultation
• Continuous improvement.
Responsibility for risk management is
shared across all levels of our Institute. At
Board level, the Audit & Risk Committee
has oversight of our Risk Management
Program and determines the risk profile
against an agreed risk appetite. At
management level, the EMT identifies,
assesses, monitors and manages strategic
and operational risk and compliance
across the organisation. Areas where
risk management is undertaken include:
• Strategic
• Operational
• Project
• Contractual.
Key risks and risks associated with
implementing the Strategic Plan identified
in these areas are assessed by the EMT,
and mitigating actions are implemented and
monitored. The Audit & Risk Committee
and the Board receive a quarterly risk report
on the strategic and operational risks of
the Institute, which in 2012–2013 included
high-level risks associated with the One
New Institute project.

Whistleblower policy
Our Institute is committed to ethical
conduct and to providing an opportunity
for employees, members, candidates and
other stakeholders to raise any concerns
about unethical or illegal conduct by
employees, members, candidates or
Directors, or by contractors or consultants
to the Institute. Our whistleblower policy
provides protection procedures for persons
wishing to disclose reportable conduct
information internally and externally.
Management representation letters
The CEO and Chief Operating Officer (COO)
submit annual management representation
letters to the Board and the external auditor
acknowledging that information regarding
the financial statements and non-financial
information in the Annual Report, including
our risk control framework, is true and fair
in accordance with relevant standards.
Communication
At the Annual General Meeting, the Board
presents to members the Annual Report,
signed by the President and Deputy
President, which includes our audited
financial statements for the financial year.
Members are emailed a PDF version of
the Annual Report. Hard copies of the
Annual Report are available for members
and key stakeholders. A summary is
reported in Charter magazine and our
Institute news e-newsletter when the
Annual Report is available on our website
(
).

Monitoring performance
Board performance
The Board’s performance is reviewed
annually by the Nominations Committee
and the Governance Committee, with
recommendations on the range of skills,
competencies and diversity required
among the Directors. As well as conducting
the annual performance review of the
Board, the Governance Committee
evaluates the performance of individual
Directors.
Management performance
The Management Team undergoes annual
performance planning and review. The
performance of each executive is assessed
by the CEO, COO and trans-Tasman
Director Human Resources. Executives
are assessed against achievement of their
job specifications and goals, contribution
towards specific business and strategic
objectives, and adherence to our
organisational values.

June 2013

We have carried out a limited assurance engagement in order to provide a conclusion as to wheth
non-financial information in the Annual Report, as defined on page 35 of the Annual Report (“the
financial information”) of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia (‘The Institute’) for t
ended 30 June 2013 has been presented in compliance with the subject matter and criteria set ou
page 35 of the Annual Report.

Fair and responsible
remuneration
Directors
The By-laws state that the Board may
approve recommendations to remunerate
the President, Deputy President and nonexecutive Directors based on percentages
of the Australian Auditor-General’s salary
package (see Note 21(b), Compensation
of Key Management Personnel, of the
Financial Report). In the first instance
recommendations are made to the Board
by the Governance Committee. These are
put forward for member approval at the
Annual General Meeting. Directors are
considered to be independent insofar as
membership of our Institute does not imply
or constitute a relationship that would
lead to material interference with their
ability to act objectively and in the best
interests of our Institute. In 2012– 2013
the Executive Remuneration Committee
conducted a review of the remuneration
of the Directors on the CAANZ Board and
the Due Diligence Committee in relation
to their additional workload commitment
on the One New Institute project.
(Further information can be found on the
website at
).
Management
The Board’s Executive Remuneration
Committee monitors and approves the
terms and conditions of employment for
employees and employee remuneration.
The Committee considers the remuneration
and retention of the CEO and Management
Team, agrees the remuneration strategy
and structure, and approves the annual
remuneration budget.

Auditor independence

The Responsibility
of Management
The Directors
received a declaration
from for the Report
the auditor
of
our
Institute,
shown
below.
The Management of The Institute is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the non-fi

information in accordance with the subject matter and criteria set out in the basis of preparation
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The Executive Remuneration Committee
has approved the implementation of a
performance-based incentive plan for the
Leadership Team. The Committee also
approves any other performance-based
bonus payments for Institute employees.
The CEO is eligible for a bonus payment
subject to the Board evaluating and
approving their performance against a
range of indicators, including the overall
performance of our Institute and the
achievement of key performance targets
that reflect the breadth of our strategic
and priority activities see Note 21(b),
Compensation of Key Management
Personnel, of the Financial Report).
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Advisory Committees
and Boards
A term on a Board Advisory Committee
runs from 1 January to 31 December.

CAANZ Board
(Institute members)
Craig Farrow FCA (Chair)

Audit Advisory Committee

Craig Farrow FCA (Chair)

Julian Bishop CA (Chair)

Mel Ashton FCA

Peter Catterson FCA

Rachel Grimes FCA (retired)

Lucio Di Giallonardo FCA

Tim Gullifer FCA

Carla Jago CA

Mel Ashton FCA (observer)

Corporate Advisory Committee

Michael Forde FCA

Charles McNeill FCA (Chair)

Tim Gullifer FCA

Kate Dowling FCA (Board observer)

Joint Accounting Bodies
Committee
(Institute Members)
Tim Gullifer FCA (Joint Chair)
Craig Farrow FCA (retired)
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Mike Blake FCA (Board observer)
Peter Catterson FCA
Bruce Debenham CA
Robert Groom CA
Damian Mulherin FCA
Michael Ryan FCA (retired)
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Dr Ciorstan Smark FCA

Regional Councils
Australian Capital Territory
Steven McDonnell FCA (Chair)
Sue-Ellen Bickford CA (Vice Chair)
David Robjent FCA (Vice Chair)
Amy Fox CA
Stephen Holmes FCA
Professor Kerry Jacobs FCA

Tasmania
Brett Spinks FCA (Chair)
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Amanda Cox CA
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Marie-Louise Martin FCA (retired)
Peter Rupp CA
Glennda Scully FCA
GiGi Visscher CA (retired)
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Thea Eszenyi FCA (Chair)
Mark Coleman FCA (Vice Chair)
Matthew Kennon FCA (NT)
Matthew King CA
Stephen Noble FCA
Mark Phelps FCA (Ex officio)
Lisa Powell FCA
Rachel Rees FCA
John van Ruth FCA
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Overseas Member Group Chairs
Singapore
Don Northey FCA (from April 2013)
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Heng Ji-Keng FCA (from December 2012)
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Michael Pang FCA
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Suranie Alwis FCA (Chair)
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Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia

Financial commentary
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Principal activities
In 2012 – 2013, the principal activities of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia (Institute) were the provision
of education and training to members,
potential members and the broader
business community, provision of member
services, and collaboration initiatives with
the New Zealand Institute of Chartered
Accountants (NZICA).

Financial results and review
of operations
Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
The Institute generated a deficit of $2.3m
for the year (2012: $2.8m surplus). Total
revenue and other income rose by 4.9%
to $96.1m, while expenditure increased
by 10.8% to $98.4m.
Revenue and expenditure
The increase in total revenue and other
income of $4.5 million over the 2012 result
primarily flowed from:
• An increase in membership revenue of
$2.9 million due to a 2.9% increase in
membership subscriptions associated
with increased member numbers of 3.6%
• An increase in education revenue of
$1.7 million, mainly in the Chartered
Accountants Program, training and
development and qualifications
assessment income.

The increase in expenditure of $9.6 million
over the 2012 result was primarily due to
the following:
• Administration expenses increased by
6.6% (or $2.7 million) due to increased
payroll expenses. Headcount increased
by 6.5% to resource various projects
including the Chartered Accountants
Program redevelopment
• IT expenses increased by 18.7%
($1.6m), primarily due to an increase
in system maintenance expenses and
enhancements to the IT infrastructure
• Other expenses increased by 44.3%
(or $5.1m), primarily as a result of
increased expenditure on One New
Institute, Chartered Accountants
brand marketing and the Chartered
Accountants Program development
project.

Capital expenditure
Capital expenditure totalled $1.8m, which
was predominantly for hardware and
software for the IT renewal program.
Statement of Financial Position
Net assets decreased by $3.5m, or 6.0%,
as a result of the deficit generated in the
year to 30 June 2013, and the downward
revaluation of land and buildings.
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents increased from
$38.8m to $44.8m, placing the Institute
in a strong financial position to fund the
operations and investments planned in
the next financial year.

Trade receivables at balance date remain
stable with debtors expected to be
recovered in the normal course of business,
with adequate provision for any debts
considered doubtful.
Property, plant and equipment had a net
decrease of $3.6m primarily due to the
downward revaluation of the Institute’s
head office building in Sydney and
depreciation charges.
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Liabilities
Fees in advance includes $35.8m (2012:
$31.9m) relating to the payments received
from members as at 30 June 2013 for
services that will be delivered in the
financial year ending 30 June 2014. The
amounts received are not expected to be
refunded and will eventuate as revenue in
the financial year ending 30 June 2014.

Provisions have increased by $0.8m
mainly due to higher employee entitlement
provisions at balance date.
Net working capital
Net working capital is negative due to
the accounting treatment in relation to
fees received in advance. The favourable
variance of $0.6m between 2013 and 2012
is primarily due to increased cash and cash
equivalents held at 30 June 2013.
Cash flow and liquidity
At balance date, the Institute had cash
of $44.8m (2012: $38.8m). Receipts from
membership subscriptions in May and June
totalled $35.8m (2012: $31.9m). The Institute
closed its overdraft facility during the year
and borrowings are not expected to be
required in the upcoming financial year.
Members’ funds
The financial objective of the Institute is
to ensure that it has sufficient reserves
to provide the necessary services to its
members and to meet its obligations as set
out in the Institute’s strategic and business
plans. The Institute has set a target ratio of
members’ funds to operating expenditure
of 45.0% to 55.0%. This ratio is currently
being met. Consistent with its Charter, the
Institute does not distribute reserves back
to its members. In the event of the Institute
being wound up or dissolved, the amount
that remains after such dissolution and
the satisfaction of all debts and liabilities
shall be transferred to another entity which
has similar objects and which has rules
prohibiting the distribution of assets and
income to its members.

FIVE-YEAR summary
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2009
$’000

Total revenue and other income

96,097

91,639

91,408

86,112

79,544

Total expenses

(98,405)

(88,801)

(86,349)

(79,392)

(74,723)

(Deficit)/surplus

(2,308)

2,838

5,059

6,720

4,821

Current assets

51,910

46,709

37,659

32,117

19,885

Non-current assets

58,424

61,834

61,184

59,945

59,528

Current liabilities

(53,021)

(48,443)

(43,541)

(42,414)

(39,989)

(2,332)

(1,621)

(1,511)

(1,255)

(943)

54,981

58,479

53,791

48,393

38,481

7,387

8,577

6,727

6,388

3,196

Accumulated surpluses

47,594

49,902

47,064

42,005

35,285

Total members’ funds

54,981

58,479

53,791

48,393

38,481

Non-current liabilities
Total net assets
Reserves

As expected, 2013 was an investment year for the Institute. Having built up strong members’ funds in the years leading
up to 2013, the Institute was able to carry out strategic investment such as the launch of the new Chartered Accountants Program,
enhancements to the IT infrastructure, and significant progress on the One New Institute project.
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Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2013
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

93,077

88,528

3,020

3,111

96,097

91,639

(21,830)

(21,751)

(5,940)

(5,795)

(44,157)

(41,422)

(9,917)

(8,355)

(16,561)

(11,478)

(98,405)

(88,801)

(2,308)

2,838

–

–

(2,308)

2,838

(1,190)

1,850

Total other comprehensive (loss)/income

(1,190)

1,850

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax

(3,498)

4,688

Notes

Revenue
Other income
Total revenue and other income

4(a)

Service expenses
Occupancy expenses
Administration expenses
Information technology expenses
Other expenses
Total expenses

4(b)

(Deficit)/surplus before tax
Income tax expense

5

(Deficit)/surplus after tax
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to surplus or deficit

Fair value (decrement)/increment of freehold property

8

The above Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2013

Notes

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

6

44,838

38,766

Trade and other receivables

7

7,072

7,943

51,910

46,709

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Receivables

7

–

–

Property, plant and equipment

8

56,740

60,302

Intangible assets

9

1,684

1,532

58,424

61,834

110,334

108,543

Total non-current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Fees in advance

10

44,280

39,936

Trade and other payables

11

5,214

5,695

Provisions

12

3,527

2,812

53,021

48,443

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables

11

1,110

509

Provisions

12

1,222

1,112

2,332

1,621

Total liabilities

55,353

50,064

Net assets

54,981

58,479

Total non-current liabilities

Members’ funds
Reserves

13

7,387

8,577

Accumulated surpluses

13

47,594

49,902

54,981

58,479

Total members’ funds
The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia

49

Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Reserves
$’000

At 1 July 2012

Total
$’000

8,577

49,902

58,479

–

(2,308)

(2,308)

Other comprehensive (loss)/income

(1,190)

–

(1,190)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income

(1,190)

(2,308)

(3,498)

At 30 June 2013

7,387

47,594

54,981

At 1 July 2011

6,727

47,064

53,791

–

2,838

2,838

Other comprehensive income

1,850

–

1,850

Total comprehensive income

1,850

2,838

4,688

At 30 June 2012

8,577

49,902

58,479

(Deficit)/surplus after tax for the year

Surplus after tax for the year

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2013

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Receipts from members’ subscriptions

56,703

52,706

Receipts from the Institute’s activities

49,330

46,664

Payments to suppliers and employees

(99,128)

(88,638)

(697)

(1,342)

6,208

9,390

32

6

(679)

(1,889)

Payments for intangibles

(1,078)

(697)

Interest received

1,589

1,595

(136)

(985)

–

–

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities

Net payments for GST
Net cash flows from operating activities

6

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payment for property, plant and equipment

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Net cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

6

6,072

8,405

38,766

30,361

44,838

38,766

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2013

1.	Corporate information
The financial statements of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia
(Institute) for the year ended 30 June 2013
were authorised for issue in accordance
with a resolution of Directors on
30 August 2013.
The Institute is a body corporate that
is governed by its Supplemental Royal
Charter and is incorporated and domiciled
in Australia. The liability of its members
is limited.
The registered office of the Institute is:
33 Erskine Street
Sydney NSW 2000
The Institute is a not-for-profit entity and its
principal activities during the year were:
• Delivery of pre- and post-admission
education and services
• Setting and maintaining of high
standards as they apply to members
to enhance their standing with the
public and the business community
• Continuing development of government
relations and advocacy programs in
pursuit of legislative and regulatory
objectives
• Continuing development of a program to
enhance the market and personal value
of the Chartered Accountant designation
• Collaboration initiatives with the
New Zealand Institute of Chartered
Accountants (NZICA).
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2. 	Summary of significant
accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation
This general-purpose Financial Report
has been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards (AIFRS)
and other authoritative pronouncements
of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board (AASB).
This Financial Report has been prepared
on the basis of historical cost, except
for freehold property, which has been
measured at fair value (refer Note 2(e)).
The Financial Report is presented in
Australian dollars (AUD) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand dollars
($’000) unless otherwise stated.
Net working capital is negative due to the
accounting treatment in relation to fees
received in advance. The Fees in advance
balance relates to payments received from
members and candidates as at 30 June
2013 for services that will be delivered in
the financial year ending 30 June 2014. The
amounts received are not expected to be
refunded and will eventuate as revenue in
the financial year ending 30 June 2014.

(b)	Statement of compliance
The Financial Report complies with
Australian Accounting Standards.
The Institute’s principal objective is not
the generation of profit. Consequently,
where appropriate, the Institute has elected
to apply options and exemptions within
accounting standards that are applicable
to not-for-profit entities. As a result this
financial report does not comply with
International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

Changes in accounting policies
and interpretations
The accounting policies adopted are
consistent with those of the previous
financial year except as follows:

The Institute has adopted the following
new and amended Australian Accounting
Standards and AASB Interpretations as of
1 July 2012:
• AASB 101 Presentation of Financial
Statements outlined in AASB 2011-9
Australian Accounting Standards –
Presentation of Other Comprehensive
Income requires the Institute to
present separately those items of other
comprehensive income that may be
reclassified as surplus or deficit in the
future and those that will never be
reclassified to surplus or deficit. The
Institute has applied this amendment
retrospectively and it is included on the
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income.
New standards and interpretations
not yet adopted
Certain Australian Accounting Standards
and AASB interpretations have recently
been issued or amended but were not
yet effective and have not been adopted
by the Institute for the annual reporting
period ended 30 June 2013. The standards
relevant to the Institute are the following:

• AASB 9 Financial Instruments includes
requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. The
requirements improve and simplify
the approach for classification and
measurement of financial assets
compared with the requirements
of AASB 139. AASB 9 will become
mandatory for the Institute’s 30 June
2016 financial statements, and is not
expected to have a material impact
on the financial statements

• AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement
establishes a single source of guidance
for determining fair value of assets and
liabilities. AASB 13 does not change
when an entity is required to use fair
value, but rather provides guidance on
how to determine fair value. AASB 13
will become mandatory for the Institute’s
30 June 2014 financial statements, and
is not expected to have any impact on
the financial statements. However, it
will require additional disclosures relating
to assets and liabilities recognised at
fair value
• AASB 119 Employee Benefits (2011)
changes the definition of short-term
employee benefits and other long-term
benefits and clarifies the distinction
between the two. The distinction
between the short-term and other
long-term benefits is now based on
whether the benefits are expected to be
settled wholly with 12 months after the
reporting date. AASB 119 will become
mandatory for the Institute’s 30 June
2015 financial statements, and is not
expected to have a material impact on
the financial statements.
There are no new interpretations which
are expected to have any impact on the
Institute’s financial statements.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement
of Financial Position, which comprise cash at
bank and in hand and short-term deposits,
are stated at their nominal amount.
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash
Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above and include deposits at call which
are readily convertible to cash in hand and
subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

(d)	Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised and
carried at original invoice amount less an
allowance for impairment. Collectability
of trade receivables is reviewed on an
ongoing basis. An impairment provision
is recognised when there is objective
evidence that the Institute will not be able
to collect the receivable. Individual debts
that are known to be uncollectible are
written off when identified.
(e)	Property, plant and equipment
Freehold property is measured at fair
value, less accumulated depreciation
on buildings and building plant, less
any impairment losses recognised after
the date of revaluation. All plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation or amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, other than land, is calculated
on a straight-line basis at rates which take
account of the remaining useful life of the
relevant assets and their estimated residual
values. The cost of fixtures and fittings on
leasehold premises is amortised over their
estimated useful lives or the remainder of
the lease period, dependent on whichever
period is shorter.
Major depreciation periods are:
Freehold property:
Building

50 years

Building plant

25 years

Furniture

10 years

Office equipment

5 years

Computer equipment

3 years

Fixtures and fittings on
freehold premises

10 years

Fixtures and fittings on
leasehold premises

Lease term

Motor vehicles

3 years

The assets’ residual values, useful lives,
depreciation and amortisation methods
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each financial year end.

(i)	Impairment
The carrying values of plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable.
Impairment losses are recognised as
expenditure in the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
Freehold property is measured at revalued
amounts, and therefore impairment losses
on freehold property are treated as a
revaluation decrement.
(ii)	Revaluations
Following initial recognition at cost,
freehold property is carried at a revalued
amount, which is the fair value at the
date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation on buildings and
any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Revaluations are carried out annually.

Any revaluation increment is credited to the
property revaluation reserve included in the
members’ funds section of the Statement
of Financial Position, except to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrement for
the same asset previously recognised in
profit or loss, in which case the increase
is recognised in profit or loss.
Any revaluation decrement is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent that
it offsets a previous revaluation increment
for the same asset, in which case the
decrement is debited directly to the
property revaluation reserve to the
extent of the credit balance existing in
the revaluation reserve for that asset.
(iii)	Derecognition and disposal
An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when
no further future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income in the year the
asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2013

2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(f)	Intangibles
Intangible assets acquired are initially
measured at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried
at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over their useful life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at
least at each financial year end. Changes
in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are accounted
for by changing the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, which is a change
in accounting estimate. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognised in profit or loss in the
expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible asset.
Intangibles are amortised as follows:
Computer software 3 years

Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, and are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.
The Institute has no intangible assets
assessed as having an indefinite life.

(g)	Fees in advance
Fees in advance are carried at original
invoice amount in respect of goods and
services to be provided subsequent to
balance date. Fees in advance includes
membership fees, Chartered Accountants
Program enrolment fees, and Training &
Development course fees.
The Fees in advance balance relates to
payments received from members and
candidates as at 30 June 2013 for services
that will be delivered in the financial
year ending 30 June 2014. The amounts
received are not expected to be refunded
and will eventuate as revenue in the
financial year ending 30 June 2014.

(h)	Trade and other payables
Trade payables are carried at amortised
cost. They represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Institute
prior to the end of the financial year that
are unpaid and arise when the Institute
becomes obliged to make future payments
in respect of the purchase of these goods
and services. Trade payables are noninterest bearing and are normally settled
on a 30-day term.
(i)	Employee benefits
(i)	Wages, salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits, and annual leave
expected to be settled within 12 months
of the reporting date, are recognised in
other payables in respect of employees’
services up to the reporting date. They
are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

(ii)	Long service leave
The liability for long service leave is
recognised in the provision for employee
benefits and measured as the present value
of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date using the projected
unit credit method. Consideration is given
to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures,
and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market
yields at the reporting date on Australian
Government Bonds with terms to maturity
and currencies that match, as closely
as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows.
(iii)	Termination benefits
Liabilities for termination benefits are
recognised in the provision for employee
benefits when the Institute is demonstrably
committed to terminating the employee
or where an offer is made in order to
encourage voluntary redundancy. They are
measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are to be settled
within 12 months. Where the termination
benefits are expected to be due more
than 12 months after reporting date, the
amounts are discounted using market
yields on Australian Government Bonds
with terms to maturity and currencies
that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.
(iv)	Superannuation
Liabilities for superannuation are recognised
in the provision for employee benefits.
The Institute provides superannuation in
accordance with the relevant government
legislation.
(v)	Workers’ compensation
The Institute maintains workers’
compensation cover in accordance
with the relevant State and Territory
government legislation.
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(j)	Revenue and expense recognition
Revenues and expenses are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that their
respective economic benefits will flow to,
or be lost, or be consumed by the Institute
and that the revenues and expenses can be
reliably measured. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before
revenues or expenses are recognised.
(i)	Member fees
The Institute’s membership subscription
year is 1 July to 30 June. Fees are payable
annually in advance. Only those member
fee receipts that are attributable to the
current financial year are recognised
as revenue.

Fee receipts relating to periods beyond the
current financial year are shown, excluding
any applicable taxes, in the Statement
of Financial Position as Fees in advance,
under the heading of current liabilities.
(ii)	Other revenue-generating activities
The Institute undertakes certain activities
which are accounted for on a workin-progress basis, including Chartered
Accountants Program modules, Training
& Development courses, quality reviews,
Charter magazines, conferences, and
student activities. The Institute’s policy
of accrual accounting with respect to the
recognition of revenues and expenses on
such activities is as follows:

• For activities which are completed on
or before balance date, any surplus or
deficit is incorporated into the year’s
results
• For activities which take place wholly
after the end of the financial year, any
revenue received and expense incurred
on such activities prior to balance date
is deferred and carried forward in the
Statement of Financial Position within
fees in advance and prepayments
respectively
• For activities which span across the
balance date, a proportion of the final
projected net surplus is recognised in
the financial year on the percentage of
completion basis.

Revenue in regard to certain activities is
deferred in cases where it is anticipated
that refunds will be made in regard to
discontinuation by attendees. The deferred
amount is carried forward in the Statement
of Financial Position within fees in advance.
For activities which span across the
balance date, the methods adopted to
determine the percentage of completion
basis are as follows:
• For Chartered Accountants Program
modules, the percentage of completion
is apportioned according to the time
span between the commencement of
the module and the completion of the
examination
• For other courses and activities that
are delivered in a series of events, the
percentage of completion is apportioned
according to the number of events
delivered at balance date compared to
the total number of events in the series.
(iii)	Sale of goods
The Institute recognises revenue from the
sale of goods when physical control of the
goods passes to the buyer pursuant to an
enforceable sales contract and the costs
incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably. Risks
and rewards of ownership are considered
passed to the buyer at the time of delivery
of the goods to the buyer.
(iv)	Member benefits revenue
The Institute receives revenue in the form
of trailing or upfront commissions on
member-generated activity through its
member benefit program offers. Income
is accounted for on an accrual basis.
(v)	Interest income and expense
Interest income on bank bills and deposits
is recognised on an accrual basis (using the
effective interest method, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of
the investment) where the Institute attains
control of a right to receive consideration
for an investment.

(vi)	Member groups
The Institute grants funds to certain
interstate and overseas member groups.
These funds are paid to support and
supplement membership activities
controlled by members in those locations
and are expensed by the Institute at the
time of the payment to the groups.

(k)	Income tax and other taxes
(i)	Income tax
The Institute prepares its income tax
returns by reference to the application of
the principle of mutuality to the revenue
and expenses of the Institute. The principle
of mutuality is a common law principle
arising from the premise that individuals
cannot profit from themselves. Accordingly,
receipts from members are deemed to
be mutual income and not subject to
income tax, and expenses in connection
with mutual activities are therefore not
deductible for taxation purposes. All other
receipts and payments are classified in
accordance with taxation legislation.

The Institute is liable for other taxes,
including fringe benefits tax.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax losses and unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences
and the carry forward of unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.
The exception is when the deferred tax
asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor the taxable
profit or loss.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at each balance date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Interest expense on borrowings is recognised
on an accrual basis. There was no interest
on borrowings incurred during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2013

2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each balance date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Commitments and contingencies
Commitments and contingencies are
disclosed net of the amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority.

If any such indication exists, and where
the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets or cashgenerating units are written down to
their recoverable amount.

Deferred tax assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at balance date.

(l)	Operating leases
Operating lease payments are recognised
as an expense in the Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Lease incentives are recognised in
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income as an integral part
of the total lease expense.

The recoverable amount of the asset is
the greater of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use.

Where assets are revalued, no provision for
potential capital gains tax has been made
because of the long-term nature of the
asset and the existence of accumulated
tax losses.
(ii) 	Goods and services tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are
recognised net of the amount of GST except:

• Where the GST incurred on a purchase
of goods or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which
case the GST is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable
• Receivables and payables, which are
stated with the amount of GST included.
The net amount of GST recoverable from,
or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables
in the Statement of Financial Position.
In respect of all fees in advance that are
subject to GST, a liability for GST payable
is raised except for fees in advance that
have a settlement date in respect of the
GST liability that occurs prior to balance
date at which stage the liability will have
already been settled.
Cash flows are included in the Statement
of Cash Flows on a gross basis, and the
GST component of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities, which
is recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority, is classified as part of
operating cash flows.

56

Annual Report 2013

(m)	Provisions
Provisions are recognised when there is a
present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.
If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted using
a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as
a borrowing cost. The rate used is with
reference to the applicable Australian
Government Bond rate.

(n) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense when incurred.
(o)	Impairment of assets other
than goodwill
The carrying values of the Institute’s assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not
be recoverable.
For an asset that does not generate
largely independent cash inflow, the
recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but only to the extent
that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years.
An impairment loss and/or reversal is
recognised in the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
immediately.

(p)	Significant accounting judgments,
estimates and assumptions
In applying the Institute’s accounting
policies, management continually evaluates
judgments, estimates and assumptions
based on experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events
that may have an impact on the Institute.
All judgments, estimates and assumptions
made are believed to be reasonable based
on the most current set of circumstances
available to management. Actual results
may differ under different conditions from
the judgments, estimates and assumptions.
Significant judgments, estimates and
assumptions made by management in the
preparation of these financial statements
are outlined below.

(i)	Significant accounting judgments
Non-recovery of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are not recognised
for deductible temporary differences
as management considers that it is not
probable that future taxable profits will
be available to utilise those temporary
differences.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Institute assesses impairment of all
assets at each reporting date by evaluating
conditions specific to the Institute and
to the particular asset that may lead to
impairment. These include the asset’s use
and performance, future expectations,
economic and political environments and
the assessment of the asset’s carrying
value. If an impairment trigger exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is
determined. This involves value-in-use
calculations, which incorporate a number
of key estimates and assumptions.
Provision for make good
Due to the long-term nature of the provision
for make good, the greatest uncertainty
is estimating the costs that will ultimately
be incurred.
(ii)	Significant accounting
estimates and assumptions
Long service leave provision
As disclosed in Note 2(i)(ii), the liability
for long service leave is recognised and
measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash flows to be made in
respect of all employees at balance date.
In determining the present value of the
liability, future estimates of attrition rates,
pay increases through promotion, and
inflation have been taken into account.

Allowance for impairment loss
on trade receivables
Where receivables are outstanding beyond
normal trading terms, the likelihood of
recovery of these receivables is assessed
by management on an individual account
basis. The impairment loss is outlined in
Note 7.

Estimation of useful lives of assets
The estimation of the useful lives of assets
has been based on historical experience as
well as future expectations on use, lease
terms (for leased equipment), and turnover
policies (for motor vehicles). In addition,
the condition of the assets is assessed at
least annually and considered against their
remaining useful life. Adjustments to useful
lives are made when considered necessary.
Depreciation and/or amortisation charges
are included in Notes 8 and 9.
Carrying amount of land and buildings
The Institute’s freehold property is recorded
at fair value as outlined in Note 2(e)(ii) and
Note 8.

3.	Financial risk management
objectives and policies
The Institute’s principal financial instruments
are comprised of cash and receivables.
The Institute manages its exposure to
key financial risks in accordance with its
financial risk management policy. The
objective of the policy is to support the
delivery of the Institute’s financial targets
while protecting future financial security.
The main risks arising from the Institute’s
financial instruments are:
• Market risk
• Credit risk
• Liquidity risk.
The Institute uses different methods to
measure and manage the risks to which
it is exposed. These include:
• Monitoring levels of exposure to
interest rates
• Monitoring assessments of market
forecasts for interest rates
• Ageing analysis and monitoring of
specific credit balances to manage
credit risk
• Liquidity risk monitoring through the
development of future rolling cash
flow forecasts.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. The main components of market
risk to the Institute are interest rate risk
and currency risk.
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that
movements in variable interest rates
will affect financial performance by
increasing interest expenses or reducing
interest income.
Interest rate risk arises from financial assets
and liabilities that are subject to floating
interest rates. The Institute’s exposure to
market interest rates relates primarily to
cash and cash equivalents.
The Institute closed its overdraft facility
during the current financial year. In the
previous financial year, the Institute had an
approved seasonal overdraft of $5,000,000.
The interest rate was based on the 30-day
bank bill swap rate plus a margin.
Currency risk refers to the risk that the
fair value or future cash flow of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in exchange rates.
The Institute is exposed to currency risk
comprising purchases and contributions to
the International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC) and overseas member groups
denominated in a currency other than
the AUD. The Institute manages currency
risk by forecasting expected purchases
denominated in a foreign currency and
monitoring exchange rates.

The Board reviews and agrees on policies
for managing each of these risks. The
policies are summarised here.
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3.	Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
At balance date, the Institute had the following exposure to interest rates:
Principal
subject
to floating
interest rate

Principal
subject
to fixed
interest rate

Non-interest
bearing

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

9,378

35,460

–

44,838

Trade receivables

–

–

3,027

3,027

Other receivables

–

–

1,526

1,526

9,378

35,460

4,553

49,391

Trade and other payables

–

–

(6,324)

(6,324)

Total financial liabilities

–

–

(6,324)

(6,324)

5,407

33,359

–

38,766

Trade receivables

–

–

3,794

3,794

Other receivables

–

–

1,847

1,847

5,407

33,359

5,641

44,407

Trade and other payables

–

–

(6,204)

(6,204)

Total financial liabilities

–

–

(6,204)

(6,204)

2013
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

2012
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

The average interest rate re-pricing on fixed term deposits is 216 days (2012: 153 days).
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At balance date, the Institute had the following exposure to foreign currency:

Foreign cash at bank

Foreign cash at bank translated to AUD

2013
USD
$’000

2012
USD
$’000

145

33

2013
AUD
$’000

2012
AUD
$’000

158

32

Sensitivity analysis
The following sensitivity is based on interest rate risk exposures in existence at balance date.
A sensitivity of 50 basis points shift has been selected as this is considered reasonable given the
current level of short-term Australian interest rates.
At 30 June 2013, if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables
held constant, post-tax surplus and members’ funds would have been affected as follows:
POST-TAX surplus
increase/(decrease)

Members’ funds
increase/(decrease)

Judgment of reasonably possible movements

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

If there was 50 basis points higher in interest rates
with all other variables held constant

224

194

224

194

If there was 50 basis points lower in interest rates
with all other variables held constant

(224)

(194)

(224)

(194)

A strengthening of the AUD against the United States dollar (USD) at 30 June would have decreased
the post-tax surplus and members’ funds by the amounts shown below. The analysis is based on foreign
currency exchange rate variances that the Institute considers to be reasonably possible at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis only covers foreign currency monetary items and assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.
POST-TAX surplus
increase/(decrease)
Judgment of reasonably possible movements

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Members’ funds
increase/(decrease)
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

AUD to USD exchange rate + 10%

(14)

(3)

(14)

(3)

AUD to USD exchange rate - 10%

18

4

18

4
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3.	Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the loss that the Institute would incur if a debtor or other counterparty defaults under its
contractual obligations.
Credit risk would arise from the financial assets of the Institute, which comprise cash at bank, short-term deposits
and trade and other receivables. The Institute’s exposure to credit risk in relation to cash at bank and short-term
deposits is limited due to the practice of only depositing funds with any of the four major Australian banks. The
Institute’s exposure to credit risk in relation to trade and other receivables is limited as there are a large number
of low-value individual debtors located in multiple geographical areas. Receivable balances are monitored on a
regular basis, with the result that the Institute’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Management believes that the Institute does not have a concentration of credit risk. The Institute’s maximum
exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the cash at bank, short-term deposits and receivables held.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of the Institute’s operational liquidity requirements, the Institute:
• Will not have sufficient funds to settle a transaction on the due date
• Will be forced to sell financial assets at a value less than what they are worth, or
• May be unable to settle or recover a financial asset at all.
To help reduce these risks, the Institute has a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash
and cash equivalents to be maintained.
The Institute receives a substantial part of its cash inflows at the beginning of the financial year and manages
its expenditure within these cash inflows and approved funding arrangements.
The following table details the Institute’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has
been prepared based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Institute can be required to pay.
Less than 6
months

6 to 12
months

1 to 5
years

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

(4,964)

(250)

(1,110)

(6,324)

(4,964)

(250)

(1,110)

(6,324)

(5,395)

(300)

(509)

(6,204)

(5,395)

(300)

(509)

(6,204)

2013
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

2012
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
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4.	Revenue and expenses
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Subscriptions and related revenue

48,471

45,587

Education and other services

44,606

42,941

Total revenue

93,077

88,528

1,050

1,023

414

505

1,556

1,610

–

(27)

3,020

3,111

96,097

91,639

Freehold property

810

810

Furniture and equipment

494

643

Computer equipment

441

526

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises

822

818

Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises

437

387

17

19

3,021

3,203

924

550

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets

3,945

3,753

Operating lease expense on premises

2,218

2,098

Wages and salaries

37,514

35,143

Superannuation

2,903

2,781

40,417

37,924

8

10

2,536

446

(a)	Revenue

Other income
Rent
Royalties
Interest from other persons
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Total other income
Total revenue and other income

(b)	Expenses included in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets

Motor vehicles
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Computer software

Employee benefits expense

Bad debts written off
One New Institute expenses

One New Institute expenses consist of expenses in relation to the proposed merger between the Institute and NZICA. The Institute and
NZICA entered into a Memorandum of Understanding on 2 December 2012 which effectively bound each respective party to share
mutually beneficial One New Institute expenses equally. Where the One New Institute expenses are not mutually beneficial, the costs
were borne wholly by the respective parties. In the event that the Institute members vote against the merger and NZICA members vote in
favour of the merger, then the Institute will be liable to incur an additional $742,000 of One New Institute costs, as described in Note 15.
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5. Income tax
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

(1,345)

(1,457)

(862)

(654)

2,207

2,111

–

–

(2,308)

2,838

Prima facie tax (benefit)/expense at the rate of 30% (2012: 30%)

(692)

851

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years

(862)

(654)

92

159

(745)

(2,467)

2,207

2,111

–

–

(a)	Income tax expense
The major components of income tax are:
Current income tax (benefit)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years
Tax losses carried forward to future years
Aggregate income tax expense

(b)	Numerical reconciliation between tax benefit recognised in the Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and prima facie income tax
(Deficit)/surplus after tax

Entertainment
Mutual activities
Tax losses carried forward to future years
Aggregate income tax expense

At balance date, accumulated revenue tax losses of $23,002,000 (2012: $18,519,000) existed, giving rise to a potential future
tax benefit. The potential deferred tax asset attributable to the revenue tax losses are not recognised, as realisation is not
probable. The deferred tax asset for revenue tax losses, which will offset future non-mutual income, will only be utilised if:
• Future assessable income is derived of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit to be realised
• The conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislation continue to be complied with, and
• No changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Institute in realising the benefit.
Net deferred tax liabilities not recognised in respect of temporary differences amount to $451,000 (2012: $1,102,000).
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6.	Cash and cash equivalents
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

9,378

5,407

35,460

33,359

44,838

38,766

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Cash and cash equivalents (per Statement of Financial Position)

44,838

38,766

Cash and cash equivalents (per Statement of Cash Flows)

44,838

38,766

(2,308)

2,838

3,021

3,203

–

27

924

550

(1,589)

(1,595)

2,356

2,185

Decrease/(increase) in receivables

871

(645)

Increase in trade and other payables

120

1,264

Increase in provisions

825

375

4,344

3,373

6,160

4,367

6,208

9,390

Cash at bank and on hand
Short-term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank which is at call and which earned
interest at floating rates and short-term deposits which earned interest at fixed rates.
The Institute closed its overdraft facility during the financial year. In the previous financial year, the Institute
had an overdraft facility of $5,000,000, which was secured by a registered mortgage over the property
situated at 33 Erskine Street, Sydney, NSW. The effective interest rate was based upon the 30-day bank
bill swap rate plus a margin.
At 30 June 2013, the Institute had no available undrawn borrowing facilities (2012: $5,000,000).

Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following at the
end of the financial year:

Reconciliation of net (Deficit)/surplus after tax to net cash flows from operations
(Deficit)/surplus after tax
Adjustment:
Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Amortisation of intangible assets
Interest received

Changes in working capital:

Increase in fees in advance

Net cash flows from operating activities
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7. 	Trade and other receivables
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

3,054

3,813

(27)

(19)

3,027

3,794

Other receivables

1,526

1,847

Prepayments

2,519

2,302

7,072

7,943

Loan receivable

350

350

Provision for impairment

(350)

(350)

–

–

Current
Trade receivables (a)
Allowance for impairment loss

Non-trade receivables (b)

Total trade and other receivables

Non-current
Non-trade receivables (c)

Net loan receivable
(a) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-day terms. A provision for impairment
loss has been made for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables determined by assessment made by
management when there is objective evidence that an individual trade receivable is impaired. A net impairment
charge/(writeback) of of $16,000 (2012: ($144,000)) has been recognised by the Institute in the current year.
These amounts have been included in the other expenses line item in the Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income.
Included in the Institute’s trade receivables are debtors with a carrying amount of $591,000 (2012: $1,294,000)
which are past due at the reporting date but not considered impaired as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the Institute considers the amounts are still recoverable. The Institute does not hold any
collateral over these balances.
All other balances within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due.
Based on the credit quality of these other receivables, it is expected that those amounts will be received when
due. The Institute has no receivables with renegotiated credit terms that would have been past due under the
original terms and conditions.
(b) Current non-trade receivables are generally non-interest bearing and are normally payable at call. There are
no non-trade receivables that are past due at the reporting date.
(c) The Institute, in conjunction with CPA Australia and the Institute of Public Accountants, has lent funds to
the Association of Accounting Technicians (AAT) as agreed under a Memorandum of Understanding. The
non-current loan to AAT is $350,000 before interest, which is charged monthly based on the 90-day bank
bill rate plus 0.5%. Management has assessed the AAT loan, and an impairment provision has been created
for the entire amount.
The Institute, CPA Australia, the Institute of Public Accountants and AAT in March 2012 agreed to amend
the loan terms to extend the repayment schedule of the loan with the first repayment due on 30 June 2016.
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2013
$’000

2012
$’000

2,436

2,500

31 – 60 days

360

318

61 – 90 days

115

885

> 90 days

116

91

591

1,294

31 – 60 days

–

–

61– 90 days

–

–

27

19

27

19

3,054

3,813

Balance at beginning of financial year

19

173

Net charge/(writeback) for the year

16

(144)

Amounts written off

(8)

(10)

27

19

At 30 June, the ageing analysis of trade debtors and other receivables is as follows:
Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired:

Past due and impaired:

> 90 days

Total
Movements in the provision for impairment loss were as follows:

Balance at end of financial year
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8.	Property, plant and equipment
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

48,000

50,000

Furniture and equipment – at cost

5,191

5,158

Less: Accumulated depreciation

(3,115)

(3,047)

2,076

2,111

Computer equipment – at cost

3,543

3,933

Less: Accumulated depreciation

(3,087)

(3,221)

456

712

8,214

8,214

(4,488)

(3,666)

3,726

4,548

Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises – at cost

4,613

4,608

Less: Accumulated amortisation

(2,138)

(1,701)

2,475

2,907

Motor vehicles – at cost

94

94

Less: Accumulated depreciation

(87)

(70)

7

24

56,740

60,302

Freehold property – at fair value

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises – at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total property, plant and equipment

Motor vehicles
Motor vehicles are either provided to certain senior staff in accordance with approved employment
arrangements or purchased for marketing purposes.
Revaluation of freehold property
The fair value of freehold property is a Directors’ valuation and has taken into account an independent
valuation undertaken as at 30 June 2013 based upon depreciated replacement cost. The valuation was
carried out by Cushman & Wakefield (NSW) Pty Limited.
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Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment are set out below:
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

50,000

48,960

(1,190)

1,850

(810)

(810)

48,000

50,000

2,111

2,356

Additions

486

430

Disposals

(27)

(32)

(494)

(643)

2,076

2,111

Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year

712

957

Additions

188

281

Disposals

(3)

–

(441)

(526)

456

712

4,548

5,292

–

74

(822)

(818)

3,726

4,548

Freehold property
Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year
(Decrement)/increment
Depreciation expense

Furniture and equipment
Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year

Depreciation expense

Computer equipment

Depreciation expense

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises
Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year
Additions
Depreciation expense
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8.	Property, plant and equipment (continued)
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

2,907

2,191

Additions

5

1,104

Disposals

–

(1)

(437)

(387)

2,475

2,907

Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year

24

43

Depreciation expense

(17)

(19)

7

24

60,302

59,799

679

1,889

(1,190)

1,850

(30)

(33)

Depreciation expense

(2,584)

(2,816)

Amortisation expense

(437)

(387)

56,740

60,302

Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises
Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year

Amortisation

Motor vehicles

Total
Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year
Additions
(Decrement)/increment
Disposals

Carrying amount at end of the financial year
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9. Intangibles
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

5,152

4,131

(3,468)

(2,599)

1,684

1,532

Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year

1,532

1,385

Additions

1,078

697

Disposals

(2)

–

(924)

(550)

1,684

1,532

35,804

31,934

7,753

7,513

723

489

44,280

39,936

Trade payables

3,489

4,037

Other payables

1,225

1,058

Lease liabilities

500

600

5,214

5,695

1,110

509

1,110

509

Computer software
Less: Accumulated amortisation

Reconciliation

Amortisation
Carrying amount at end of the financial year

10.	Fees in advance
Members’ fees
Development course fees
Other

11. 	Trade and other payables
Current

Non-current
Lease liabilities

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether
or not billed to the Institute. Payables are normally settled on 30-day terms and no interest is incurred
on these payables.
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12.	Provisions
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

3,527

2,812

3,527

2,812

Employee entitlements

801

722

Make good provision

421

390

1,222

1,112

390

333

Arising during year

–

79

Utilised during the year

–

(46)

31

24

421

390

Current
Employee entitlements

Non-current

Reconciliation of make good provision
Balance at beginning of financial year

Discount rate adjustment
Balance at end of financial year
In accordance with the lease agreements with various third parties, the Institute must restore leased
premises in various locations to their original condition before the cessation of their respective lease terms.
Due to the long-term nature of the liability, the greatest uncertainty in estimating the make good provision
is the costs that will ultimately be incurred.
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13.	Reserves and Accumulated surpluses
Nature and purpose of reserves
The property revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements in the value of the property.
The reserve is not distributable to members under the terms of the Supplemental Royal Charter of the Institute.
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Balance at beginning of the financial year

8,577

6,727

(Decrement)/increment on revaluation of property (refer Note 8)

(1,190)

1,850

Balance at end of the financial year

7,387

8,577

Balance at beginning of the financial year

49,902

47,064

(Deficit)/surplus after tax

(2,308)

2,838

47,594

49,902

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Within one year

2,215

1,856

After one year but not later than five years

9,064

10,167

More than five years

2,467

3,452

13,746

15,475

Expenditure commitments

945

728

Within one year

148

141

41

41

1,134

910

Movements in reserves:
Property revaluation reserve

Movements in Accumulated surpluses:

Balance at end of the financial year

14.	Commitments

Operating leases – state branch office space

The leases are all non-cancellable operating leases. Four leases are subject to
market review at set intervals of which three leases have renewal options.

After one year but not later than five years
More than five years
Expenditure commitments relate to the Institute’s IT renewal program, software licence fees and
contributions to universities for research.

Accounting Professional & Ethical Standards Board (APESB)
The Institute, in conjunction with CPA Australia and the Institute of Public Accountants, contributes
funds to the APESB as agreed under the Memorandum of Agreement. The Institute expects to contribute
an amount of $448,915 during the 2014 financial year.
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15.	Contingent liabilities
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

1,025

957

2013
$

2012
$

175,831

170,980

26,523

25,750

202,354

196,730

130,000

–

IT design and controls review

5,535

62,889

Tax services

5,000

16,946

30,000

42,603

170,535

122,438

Indemnities for bank guarantees to the lessors of premises occupied under operating leases
In May 2013, the Institute and NZICA agreed to a cost-sharing arrangement in relation to One New Institute
costs. In the event that the Institute members vote against the merger and NZICA members vote in favour of
the merger, then any One New Institute costs incurred from 1 April 2013 shall be shared by the Institute and
NZICA in proportion to their respective member numbers. The estimated additional cost that the Institute may
be liable to pay NZICA is $742,000.

16. Auditor’s remuneration

Audit of financial statements
Review of non-financial information in annual report
Total audit and review services
Other services:
One New Institute due diligence and consulting costs

Other services

The auditor also provided audit services to the Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited,
Chartered Accountants Scholarship Fund and Chartered Accountants Necessitous Circumstances
Fund on an honorary basis.
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17.	Unlisted shares in other entities
The Institute has an interest in the following corporations:
Percentage of ownership
2013

2012

Australia

100%

100%

Australia

100%

100%

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

825

831

3,527

2,812

801

722

5,153

4,365

Name of corporation

Country of incorporation

ICAA Nominees Pty Limited
Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited

ICAA Nominees Pty Limited is dormant and has not been consolidated as it is considered to be immaterial.
The Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited, Chartered Accountants Scholarship Fund and
Chartered Accountants Necessitous Circumstances Fund have not been consolidated as the Institute does
not have the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from the activities
of these entities.

18.	Employee entitlements and superannuation arrangements

The aggregate employment liability is comprised of:
Accrued wages, salaries and on-costs
Provisions (current)
Provisions (non-current)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2013

19.	Financial instruments
Fair values
The estimated net fair values of financial assets and liabilities held at balance date are represented by
their carrying amounts. The net fair value of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the asset
could be exchanged or the liability settled in a current transaction between willing parties after allowing
for transaction costs.
Financial assets and liabilities by categories:

Loans and receivables
measured at
Total
amortised cost
$’000

Financial liability
measured at
amortised cost

Notes

$’000

$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

6

44,838

44,838

–

Trade receivables

7

3,027

3,027

–

Other receivables

7

1,526

1,526

–

Total current financial assets

49,391

49,391

–

Total financial assets

49,391

49,391

–

11

(5,214)

–

(5,214)

11

(1,110)

–

(1,110)

(6,324)

–

(6,324)

43,067

49,391

(6,324)

2013
Current financial assets

Current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Non-current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total financial liabilities
Net financial assets/(liabilities)

2012
Current financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

6

38,766

38,766

–

Trade receivables

7

3,794

3,794

–

Other receivables

7

1,847

1,847

–

44,407

44,407

–

44,407

44,407

–

11

(5,695)

–

(5,695)

11

(509)

–

(509)

(6,204)

–

(6,204)

38,203

44,407

(6,204)

Total current financial assets
Total financial assets

Current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Non-current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total financial liabilities
Net financial assets/(liabilities)

74

Annual Report 2013

20.	Related party transactions
The Institute made payments of a nature detailed below to certain parties, including partners or employees
of Director-related entities. The payments were made to all parties on the same terms and conditions:
• Gifts and fees to guest speakers at Training & Development events
• Author, group leader, reviewer, examination setting and examination marking fees in respect of the
Chartered Accountants Program modules
• Reviewer fees in respect of the Quality Review Program.
The Institute also received the following fees from certain parties, including Director-related entities
as listed in the below table.
The fees were received from all parties under the same terms and conditions:
• Registration fees for attendance at Training & Development events
• Fees in respect of enrolment of students in Chartered Accountants Program modules
• Fees in respect of the Quality Review Program
• Fees in respect of attendances at networking functions
• Membership subscriptions.
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that were entered into with
Director-related entities for the relevant financial year.
All the following transactions were carried out on normal terms and conditions during the year.
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

44

74

Presentation of educational courses,
contributions and consultancy fees

257*

686*

Brentnalls SA

CAANZ professional services

173

–

M2 Telecommunications
Group Ltd, whose subsidiary is
Primus Telecom Holdings Pty Ltd

Telecommunication services

832

699

P Green FCA

University of Queensland

Venue hire

–

4

D Scammell FCA

KPMG

Preparation and presentation of educational
courses and exam supervision fees

102

45

Director

Director-related entity

Transaction detail and terms

T Gullifer FCA

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Preparation and presentation of educational
courses, royalties and consultancy services

M Waldron FCA &
N Wilson FCA

PricewaterhouseCoopers

C Farrow FCA

* An amount of $38,000 (2012: $265,000) was on-billed to NZICA.

The Institute also has related party transactions with the Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited,
Chartered Accountants Scholarship Fund and Chartered Accountants Necessitous Circumstances Fund.
The Institute incurred $2,000 (2012: $10,000) of legal and other fees on behalf of the Chartered Accountants
Benevolent Foundation Limited.
The Institute also provides complimentary accounting and administration services for the Chartered Accountants
Benevolent Foundation Limited, Chartered Accountants Scholarship Fund and Chartered Accountants
Necessitous Circumstances Fund.
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21.	Director and executive disclosures
(a)	Details of key management personnel
(i)	Directors

T Gullifer FCA
M Ashton FCA
A Waters FCA
M Blake FCA
M Forde CA
P Green FCA
B Kaufmann FCA
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D Scammell FCA

Appointed 1 October 2012

L Dowling CA

Appointed 1 October 2012

B Miels FCA

Appointed 1 January 2013

M Waldron FCA

Appointed 7 February 2013

C Farrow FCA

Retired 31 December 2012

N Wilson FCA

Retired 31 December 2012

Annual Report 2013

(ii)	Executives

L White FCA

Chief Executive Officer

P Reddy FCA

Chief Operating Officer

W Zammit

Head of Governance

W Palmer FCA

Director of International Relations

S Grant FCA

General Manager Members

L Morta

Chief Information Officer (Joint with NZICA)

A Evans FCA

Director for Chartered Accountants Program and Admissions (Joint with NZICA)

Y El-Ansary CA

General Manager Leadership & Quality

B Bell

General Manager Strategy and Business Excellence

T Fisher

General Manager Sales and Marketing

J Abbott

Trans-Tasman Human Resources Director (Joint with NZICA)

A McCotter

General Manager Learning & Business Solutions

H Black

Head of Corporate Communications

P Ellenger

General Manager for Queensland

A MacDonald

General Manager for New South Wales

M Jones

General Manager for South Australia & Northern Territory

R Le Grande

General Manager for Australian Capital Territory

D Pittard

General Manager for Victoria & Tasmania

G Arcus

General Manager for Western Australia

D Chambers CA

Head of Finance

Appointed 1 October 2012

V Stojanovska

General Legal Counsel

Appointed 4 March 2013

M Maky

General Manager Human Resources

Resigned 10 May 2013

T Everingham

Acting General Manager for New South Wales

Secondment ended 1 January 2013

Appointed 13 May 2013

Appointed 21 January 2013
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21.	Director and executive disclosures (continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel
(i)	Compensation policy
Remuneration of the Directors and senior management is determined and approved by the Executive Remuneration
Committee, which also reviews remuneration levels for all employees. The Committee is appointed by the Board
and consists of four members of the Board (currently the President, Deputy President, Chairman of the Governance
Committee and Chairman of the Audit & Risk Committee).

To ensure equity in our remuneration decisions the Institute uses salary bands to establish remuneration ranges for
jobs of similar value. The Institute benchmarks jobs for job sizing using a well-established methodology that provides
remuneration ranges for salary bands based on job size. In structuring remuneration ranges the Institute aims to
remain competitive and positioned appropriately for the scope and size of its operations.
The benchmark that the Institute bases Directors’ remuneration on is:
• President: 25% – 40% of the total salary package of the Auditor-General of the Commonwealth of Australia
• Deputy President: Up to 50% of the remuneration of the President
• Directors: Up to 50% of the remuneration of the Deputy President.
(ii)	Compensation of Directors and executives for the year
2013
$’000

2012
$’000

5,232

5,331

237

59

70

503

5,539

5,893

Compensation by category
Short-term benefits
Other long-term benefits*
Termination benefits**

* Employees are entitled to the payment of bonuses when in office as at the vesting date.
** Includes termination payments to the former General Manager, Human Resources for the financial year 2012 – 2013, and termination payments
to the former Chief Executive Officer, Executive General Manager Transformation and Head of ICT for the financial year 2011– 2012.

2013
Number

2012
Number

– $29,999

5

1

$30,000 – $59,999

5

8

$60,000 – $89,999

2

1

$100,000 – $119,999

–

1

$120,000 – $129,999

1

–

The number of Directors whose remuneration falls within the following bands is:
$0
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2013
Number

The number of executives whose remuneration falls within the following bands is:
$0

2012
Number

– $49,999

1

1

$50,000 – $99,999

3

1

$100,000 – $149,999

2

2

$150,000 – $199,999

6

8

$200,000 – $249,999

3

5

$250,000 – $299,999

4

2

$300,000 – $349,999

2

1

$350,000 – $399,999

1

1

$450,000 – $499,999

–

1

$550,000 – $599,999

1

–

$650,000 – $699,999

–

1

(iii)	Loans to key management personnel
There are no loans between key management personnel and the Institute.
(iv)	Other transactions with key management personnel and their personally related entities
There are no other transactions with key management personnel or their personally related entities.

22. Indemnification of Directors and Officers
The By-laws of the Institute indemnify the Directors and Officers, and provide that each Director and Officer:
• Shall be indemnified against any losses or expenses that such a Director or Officer incurs or becomes liable to
pay by reason of any act or deed done by the Director or Officer in the discharge of that Director’s or Officer’s
duties, except to the extent that such act or deed arises from the Director’s or Officer’s own wilful default
• Shall not be liable for the acts of any person or for joining in any receipt or document or for any act of conformity or
for any loss or expense happening to the Institute unless it arises from the Director’s or Officer’s own wilful default.

23.	Members and members’ liability
Total membership at 30 June 2013 is 61,312 (2012: 59,160).
In terms of the Institute’s Charter and By-laws:
• Members are not entitled to receive a dividend from the Institute
• Members who cease to be members remain liable to the Institute for all monies which at the time of ceasing
to be a member were due by that member to the Institute.

24.	Events after balance date
On 5 August 2013, having reviewed the results of member consultation and member polling, the Board (along with
the NZICA Board, who decided on 30 July 2013) decided to proceed to the member vote phase of the One New Institute
proposal. As a result of this decision, both Institutes are committed to incurring an estimated $1.3m of additional costs
to execute the member vote.
Apart from the abovementioned event, there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and
the date of this Financial Report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of
the Directors of the Institute, to affect significantly the operations of the Institute or the state of affairs of the Institute in
future financial years.
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Directors’ declaration
For the year ended 30 June 2013

The Directors of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia declare that the financial statements and
notes set out on pages 48 to 79, which have been prepared as required under the By-laws of the Institute:
(a) Comply with Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements
(b) Present fairly the financial position of the Institute as at 30 June 2013 and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
In the opinion of the Directors, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Institute will be able to pay its
debts as and when they become due and payable.

T Gullifer FCA
President
Sydney, 30 August 2013
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M Ashton FCA
Deputy President
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Limited Assurance Report on the non-financial information reported in the Annual
Report of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia for the year ended 30
June 2013
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Contact details
Customer Service Centre – 1300 137 322
NATIONAL OFFICE/NEW SOUTH WALES

South Australia/Northern Territory

33 Erskine Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Westpac Building
Level 29, 91 King William Street
Adelaide SA 5000

GPO Box 9985 Sydney NSW 2001
Phone
FAX

02 9290 1344
02 9262 1512

Australian Capital Territory
Level 10, 60 Marcus Clarke Street
Canberra ACT 2601
GPO Box 9985 Canberra ACT 2601
Phone
FAX

02 6122 6100
02 6122 6122

Queensland
Level 32, Central Plaza One
345 Queen Street Brisbane Qld 4000
GPO Box 9985 Brisbane Qld 4001
Phone
FAX

charteredaccountants.com.au

07 3233 6500
07 3233 6555

GPO Box 9985 Adelaide SA 5001
Phone
FAX

08 8113 5500
08 8231 1982

Victoria/Tasmania
Level 3, 600 Bourke Street
Melbourne Vic 3000
GPO Box 9985 Melbourne Vic 3001
Phone
FAX

03 9641 7400
03 9670 3143

Western Australia
Level 11, 2 Mill Street
Perth WA 6000
GPO Box 9985 Perth WA 6848
Phone
FAX

08 9420 0400
08 9321 5141

